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AGENDA
FOR AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING TO BE HELD ON
10 OCTOBER 2023 AT 6.30 PM

IN WITTBER & DR RUBY DAVY ROOMS, SALISBURY COMMUNITY HUB,
34 CHURCH STREET, SALISBURY

MEMBERS
Cr K Grenfell (Chair)
Cr B Brug (Deputy Chair)
Ms P Davies
Mr N Ediriweera
Mr C Johnson

REQUIRED STAFF
Chief Executive Officer, Mr J Harry
General Manager Business Excellence, Mr C Mansueto
Manager Governance, Mr R Deco
Senior Advisor Legal Services, Mr B Kahland
Internal Auditor & Risk Coordinator, Mr H Rafeeu

APOLOGIES
LEAVE OF ABSENCE

PRESENTATION OF MINUTES
Presentation of the Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee Meeting held on 11 July 2023.



REPORTS

For Decision

7.1.1 BDO's Final Audit Completion Report 30 June 2023...........ccceoiiiiininenieee 11
7.12 End of Financial Year Statement and AnalysiS...........cccovveveiiieieeiesiiese e, 43
7.1.3 Treasury POHCY REVIBW ........ccoiiiiiiiieiciee e 123

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE
There are no Questions on Notice.

MOTIONS ON NOTICE
There are no Motions on Notice.

OTHER BUSINESS
(Questions Without Notice, Motions Without Notice, CEO Update)
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ORDERS TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC

7.4.1 In-Confidence Session with the External Auditor as per Terms of Reference
and approved Audit and Risk Committee Annual Work Plan 2022/2023
(verbal discussion)

Recommendation

Pursuant to section 83(5) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Chief Executive Officer has

indicated that, if the Audit and Risk Committee so determines, this matter may be considered

in confidence under Part 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 on grounds that:

1.  Pursuant to Section 90(2), (3a) and (3)(b)(i) and (b)(ii) and (d)(i) and (d)(ii) of the
Local Government Act 1999, the principle that the meeting should be conducted in a
place open to the public has been outweighed in relation to this matter because:

- it relates to information the disclosure of which could reasonably be expected to
confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the council is conducting, or
proposing to conduct, business, or to prejudice the commercial position of the council;
and

- information the disclosure of which would, on balance, be contrary to the public
interest; and

- commercial information of a confidential nature (not being a trade secret) the
disclosure of which could reasonably be expected to prejudice the commercial
position of the person who supplied the information, or to confer a commercial
advantage on a third party; and

- commercial information of a confidential nature (not being a trade secret) the
disclosure of which would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest.

- it relates to personal affairs
2. Inweighing up the factors related to disclosure,

- disclosure of this matter to the public would demonstrate accountability and
transparency of the Council's operations

On that basis the public's interest is best served by not disclosing the In-Confidence
Session with the External Auditor as per Terms of Reference and approved Audit and
Risk Committee Annual Work Plan 2022/2023 (verbal discussion) item and discussion
at this point in time.

3. Pursuant to Section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 it is recommended the
Council orders that all members of the public, except relevant staff of the City of
Salisbury on duty in attendance, be excluded from attendance at the meeting for this
Agenda Item.

CLOSE
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MINUTES OF AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING HELD IN WITTBER & DR
RUBY DAVY ROOMS, SALISBURY COMMUNITY HUB, 34 CHURCH STREET,
SALISBURY ON

11 JULY 2023

MEMBERS PRESENT
Cr Kylie Grenfell (Chair)
Cr B Brug (Deputy Chair)
Ms P Davies
Mr N Ediriweera
Mr C Johnson

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
Mr A Tickle, Partner, BDO (via Teams VC), for item 7.1.1

STAFF
Chief Executive Officer, Mr J Harry
Manager Governance, Mr R Deco
Team Leader Corporate Governance, Mr B Kahland
Internal Auditor & Risk Coordinator, Mr H Rafeeu
Manager Salisbury Water, Mr. B Naumann
Manager Business Systems and Solutions, Ms L Paltridge

The meeting commenced at 6:30pm
The Chairman welcomed the Committee Members, members of the public and staff to the meeting.
APOLOGIES

Nil.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Nil

The Chairman sought and obtained leave of the meeting to bring forward on the agenda item 7.1.1.

Mr A Tickle joined the meeting via Teams VC at 6:31 pm.




711 BDO's Interim Management Letter for 2022/2023 Year End
Audit.

Moved Ms P Davies
Seconded Mr C Johnson

That Council:
1.  Notes the report

CARRIED
Mr A Tickle left the meeting at 6:37 pm.
PRESENTATION OF MINUTES
Moved Cr B Brug
Seconded Ms P Davies
The Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee Meeting held on 12 April
2023, be taken as read and confirmed.
CARRIED
REPORTS
Administration
7.0.1 Actions List
Moved Ms P Davies
Seconded Mr N Ediriweera
That Council:
1.  Notes the report.
CARRIED

UNANIMOUSLY

7.0.2 Future Reports for the Audit and Risk Committee

Moved Mr C Johnson
Seconded Cr B Brug

That Council:

1.  Notes the report.
CARRIED
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For Decision

7.1.2 Audit & Risk Committee Annual Work Plan 2023/2024

Moved Cr B Brug
Seconded Mr N Ediriweera

That Council:

1.  Approves the updated Audit & Risk Committee Annual Work Plan
for the year 2023/2024 as set out in Attachment 1 to this report
(Audit & Risk Committee, 11 July 2023, Item No.7.1.2).
CARRIED

7.1.3 3-Year Internal Audit Plan 2022/23-2024/25

Moved Cr B Brug
Seconded Ms P Davies

That Council:

1. Notes the updates made to the 3-year Internal Audit Plan 2022/2023
to 2024/2025 as set out in Attachment 1 to this report (Audit and
Risk Committee, 11 July 2023, Item No.7.1.3) and notes the
Administration’s undertaking to undertake the Rates Setting Process,
Revenue and Debtors Audit on a co-sourced basis following the
Audit and Risk Committee’s recommendation.

2. Notes the mapping of internal audits to the current identified risks in
the strategic risk register as set out in Attachment 2 of this report
(Audit and Risk Committee, 11 July 2023, Item No.7.1.3).

3. Notes the accompanying high-level indicative draft scope for
pending audits as set out in Attachment 3 of this report (Audit and
Risk Committee, 11 July 2023, Item No.7.1.3).
CARRIED

714 Internal Controls Framework and Audit and Risk Committee
section for Annual Report 2022/2023

Moved Cr B Brug
Seconded Ms P Davies

That Council:
1.  Approves the proposed inclusions in the annual report relating to
the operations and membership of the Audit and Risk Committee
for the 2022/2023 financial year as set out in Attachment 1 to this
report (Audit and Risk Committee, 11/07/2023, Item 7.1.4),
subject to the inclusion of the full life cycle stages and status of
internal audits that occurred during the year, and editorial changes
as deemed required.
CARRIED
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7.15 Risk Management and Internal Controls Activities

Moved Ms P Davies
Seconded Mr N Ediriweera

That Council:

1.  Notes the update on Risk Management and Internal Control
Activities for the 2022/2023 reporting period, as set out in
Attachment 1 to this report (Audit & Risk Committee, 11 July
2023, Item No.7.1.5).

2. Adopts the Strategic Risk Register categories and risk descriptions
for the new Strategic Risk Register, considering input and
feedback from Audit and Risk Committee, as set out in Attachment
2 to this report (Audit & Risk Committee, 11 July 2023, Item No.
7.13).

3. Notes the current Strategic Risk Register as set out in Attachment
3 to this report (Audit & Risk Committee, 11 July 2023, Item No.
7.13).
CARRIED

For Information

7.2.1 Outstanding Actions Arising from Internal Audits

Moved Mr C Johnson
Seconded Mr N Ediriweera

That Council:

1.  Notes the update in this report and the full Internal Audit Log
Actions Register in Attachment 1 to this report (Audit and Risk
Committee, 11 July 2023, Item No.7.2.1).

2. Notes the update on the Capital Works Project Audit Pressure
Points Action List in Attachment 2 to this report (Audit and Risk
Committee, 11 July 2023, Item No.7.2.1).
CARRIED

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE
There were no Questions on Notice.

MOTIONS ON NOTICE
There were no Motions on Notice.
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ORDER TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC
7.4.1 Cybersecurity Report - Jan-Mar 2023

Moved Cr B Brug
Seconded Mr C Johnson

Pursuant to section 90(2) and 90(3)(b) of the Local Government Act
1999 the Audit and Risk Committee orders that, the public be excluded
from attendance at this meeting in relation to Agenda Item 7.4.1
(Cybersecurity Report - Jan-Mar 2023) except the staff of City of
Salisbury, on grounds that:

1.  Pursuant to Section 90(2) and 90(3)(b)(i) and (ii) of the Local
Government Act 1999, the principle that the meeting should be
conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed in
relation to this matter because:

- it relates to information the disclosure of which could
reasonably be expected to confer a commercial advantage on a
person with whom the council is conducting, or proposing to
conduct, business, or to prejudice the commercial position of
the council; and

- information the disclosure of which would, on balance, be
contrary to the public interest; and

2. The disclosure of this information would, on balance, be contrary
to the public interest because the public interest in the Council
preserving its commercial sensitivity of information discussed
between Administration and Audit & Risk Committee would be
compromised by disclosure of the information.

On that basis the public's interest is best served by not disclosing
the Cybersecurity Report - Jan-Mar 2023 item and discussion at
this point in time.
CARRIED

The meeting moved into confidence at 7:33pm
The meeting moved out of confidence at 7:41pm

OTHER BUSINESS
(Questions Without Notice, Motions Without Notice, CEO Update)

ORDER TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC
OBl 7.4.2 CEO Update — Legal Matters

Moved Cr B Brug
Seconded Ms P Davies

Pursuant to section 90(2) and 90(3)(a) of the Local Government Act
1999, the public be excluded from attendance at the part of the meeting
relating to Agenda “CEO Update — Legal Matters” except staff of the
City of Salisbury on duty in attendance, to enable the Audit and Risk
Committee to consider this item in confidence on the basis that the Audit
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and Risk Committee considers it necessary and appropriate to act in a
meeting closed to the public in order to receive, discuss or consider in
confidence information relating to this item as it relates to legal advice
and actual legal proceedings (s90(3)(h) and (i) of the Local Government
Act 1999); and

Accordingly, on this basis, the principle that meetings of the Council
should be conducted in a place open to the public has been outweighed
by the need to exclude members of the public.

CARRIED

The meeting moved into confidence at 7:42pm
The meeting moved out of confidence and closed at 8:16pm
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ITEM7.1.1

ITEM

DATE
HEADING

AUTHOR

CITY PLAN LINKS

SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

7.1.1

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

10 October 2023

BDO's Final Audit Completion Report 30 June 2023

Hussain Rafeeu, Internal Auditor & Risk Coordinator, CEO and
Governance

4.2 We deliver quality outcomes that meet the needs of our
community.

For the financial year ending 30 June 2023, BDO was engaged to
perform an audit on the City of Salisbury (COS or the Council’s)
financial statements and internal controls, in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1999 (“the Act”) and the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations (2011) (“the Regulations™).

This report presents BDO’s Audit Completion Report, covering the
Independent Auditor’s Report, Auditor Independence Declaration,
and the Independent Assurance Report on Internal Controls of the
Council.

BDO have issued an unmodified audit opinion over the financial
report of the Council for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023,
and confirms that the Council has been audited in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards, the Act and the Regulations.

1.  Receives the Annual Completion Report for the year ended 30 June 2023, appearing as
Attachment 1 to this report (Audit and Risk Committee, 10 October 2023, Item 7.1.1),
including the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Report,
Independent Assurance Report on the Internal Controls of the City of Salisbury, and the
Certification of Auditor Independence.

2. Notes the Management Representation Letter requested by BDO to be signed by the
CEO and the General Manager Business Excellence, appearing as Attachment 2 to this
report (Audit and Risk Committee, 10 October 2023, Item 7.1.1).

ATTACHMENTS

This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:

1.  BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

2. Management Representation Letter
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ITEM7.1.1

1. BACKGROUND

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

COS engaged BDO to perform an audit on the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2023, and undertake assurance on the internal controls of the COS
for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023, to ensure compliance with the
requirements of sections 125 and 129 of the Act.

In accordance with section 129(3) of the Act, BDO is required to provide Council:
(@) An audit opinion with respect to the financial statements; and

(b) An audit opinion whether the controls audited are sufficient to provide
reasonable assurance that Council’s financial transactions have been
conducted properly and in accordance with the law. The audit must be carried
out in accordance with the Australian Accounting and Assurance Standards,
the Act and the Regulations.

Regulation 19(2) Part 6 Division 1 of the Local Government (Financial
Management Regulations 2011 (the Regulations) states that “in forming an audit
opinion for a council under section 129(3)(a) of the Act, the auditor must give due
consideration to the adequacy of the council's policies, practices and procedures of
internal control under section 125 of the Act.”

Section 125 of the Act states that “A council must ensure that appropriate policies,
practices and procedures of internal control are implemented and maintained in
order to assist the council to carry out its activities in an efficient and orderly
manner to achieve its objectives, to ensure adherence to management policies, to
safeguard the council's assets, and to secure (as far as possible) the accuracy and
reliability of council records.”

Section 19(2) Part 6 Division 1 of the Regulations states that “in forming an audit
opinion for a council under section 129(3)(b) of the Act, the auditor must assess
the internal controls of the council referred to in section 129(1)(b) of the Act
based on the criteria in the Better Practice Model—Internal Financial Controls.”

BDO has:

1.6.1  Audited the financial report of the City of Salisbury, which comprises of
the four Primary Financial Statements, including the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of financial position, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year ended
30 June 2023. The notes to the financial statements provide greater detail
and additional information on the four Primary Financial Statements.

1.6.2  Undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on the design and the
operating effectiveness of controls established by City of Salisbury, in
relation to the financial transactions over the:

e receipt, expenditure and investment of money;
e acquisition and disposal of property; and
e incurring of liabilities, for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023.
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ITEM7.1.1

2. REPORT

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

BDO representative Andrew Tickle, Partner, will attend this 10 October 2023
Audit and Risk Committee meeting to present BDO’s Annual Completion Report,
along with its Independent Auditor’s Report.

Attachment 1 to this report is BDO’s Audit Completion Report which addresses
the audit process and audit findings on both financial statements and internal
controls assessment.

Appendix 1 of BDO’s Audit Completion Report covers the following two audit
reports:

2.3.1 The Draft Independent Auditor’s Report.

BDO have provided its independent audit opinion on the financial report of
the Council, confirming that the financial report gives a true and fair view of
the financial position of the City of Salisbury as of 30 June 2023, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Act and the
Regulations.

2.3.2 The Independent Assurance Report on the Internal Controls of the City of
Salisbury.

BDO confirmed that in all material respects:

(a) The controls established by Council in relation to financial transactions
relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money,
acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities were
suitably designed to ensure such transactions have been conducted
properly and in accordance with law; and

(b) The controls operated effectively as designed throughout the period
from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023.

BDO have provided certification of auditor independence in performing the audit
for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 (Appendix 2 of Attachment 1).

BDO have confirmed that unqualified opinions will be provided on both financial
statements and financial internal controls audit reports.

The financial statements and financial internal controls opinions will be provided
by BDO after the Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the financial
statements and all of the following documents have been sent to them:

e Financial Statements certified by the Mayor and CEO.

e Management Representation Letter signed by the CEO and the General
Manager Business Excellence.

The Management Representation Letter requested by BDO to be signed by the
CEO and the General Manager Business Excellence, is included in Attachment 2,
for Audit and Risk Committee review.

3. CONCLUSION/PROPOSAL

3.1

BDO confirms that unmodified audit opinions will be issued on both the financial
statements and internal controls.
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7.11 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

CITY OF SALISBURY

Annual completion report
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

IDEAS | PEOPLE | TRUST lBDO
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7.11 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

CONTENTS
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7.11 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023
Dear Audit and Risk Committee
We are pleased to present this report to the Audit and Risk Committee of City of Salisbury in relation to the
30 June 2023 annual audit.
As at the date of this report, we have substantially completed our audit and subject to the satisfactory
resolution of the matters outlined in the Executive Summary, we expect to issue an unmodified audit report,
We have set out in this document the significant matters arising from our audit. This summary covers those
matters we believe to be material in the context of our work,
We look forward to the Audit and Risk Committee meeting on 10 October 2023 where we will have the
opportunity to discuss this report.
Should you require clarification on any matter in this report before this date, please do not hesitate to
contact me on +61 8 7324 6082,
We would like to take this opportunity to extend our appreciation to management for their assistance and
cooperation throughout the course of our audit
Yoyrs f ully

.I

/ 4l
Andrew Tickle
Engagement Partner
Adelaide, 27 September 2023
3 Oay of Salisbury Amnual completion report
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7.1.1

BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to communicate significant matters arising from our
audit to the Audit and Risk Committee. This report has been discussed with
management.

SCOPE

Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and
the Local Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 for the year ended 30 June 2023.

STATUS OF THE AUDIT

Our audit of the financial report is substantially complete. We expect to issue an
unmodified audit report, subject to satisfactory completion of the following:

P Satisfactory review by our appointed engagement quality review partner

P Review of events subsequent to 30 June 2023 to date of signing the audit
report

P Receipt of written management representations on various matters

P Receipt of formally adopted financial statements and agreement of these to
drafts previously provided

A draft of the proposed audit report is included at Appendix 1.

SUMMARY OF MISSTATEMENTS

We have not identified any corrected or uncorrected misstatements during our
audit.

AREAS OF AUDIT FOCUS

In performing our audit, we have identified those matters that, in the auditor’s
judgement, were of the most significance in the audit of the financial report.
Qur audit procedures also focused on areas that were considered to represent
significant and elevated risks of material misstatement. These areas of focus are
outlined below:

P Revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
P Accounting treatment of capital work in progress (WIP)
P Management override of controls

P Cut-off of grant funding and accuracy of any amounts deferred at 30 June
2023

Refer to the relevant section for details on the significant risk areas and other
areas focused on during the audit.

A City of Salisbury Annual completion report
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7.1.1 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

AREAS OF AUDIT FOCUS
B @ e n

In assessing the risks of material misstatement at the planning phase, we used a spectrum of risk based on the likelihood of a misstatement occurring and the
magnitude of the misstatement in the context of our materiality. Our audit procedures focused on areas that were considered to represent risks of material
misstatement,

We set out the areas that were considered key areas of focus along with an outline of the work performed and a summary of findings.

REVALUATION OF INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Description Audit work performed Summary of findings

Council's infrastructure, property, plant and This year certain classes of Council assets were We noted that the revaluation resulted in the
equipment is carried at valuation. There is a risk revalued by Council employees based on an following increments / {decrements):

that these balances are misstated as a result of the indexation reflecting annual average movement o Buildings 57,881,079

application and inappropriate valuation values of like assets. We have obtained details of Y

methodologies, or incorrect underlying assumptions.  these calculations and tested their accuracy. o Land $172,496,900

We have evaluated the competence, capability and » Infrastructure $117,093,644

objectivity of the independent valuers, obtained an There were no other findings noted during our
understanding of their work and appropriateness of testing. g 8

conclusions reached,

5 City of Salisbury Annuad completion report
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7.1.1 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

AREAS OF AUDIT FOCUS CONTINUED
" W B |

Description Audit work performed Summary of findings

There is a risk that the accounting treatment of We obtained the Capital WIP schedule and reviewed  No issues were noted in relation to the accounting
items captured within Capital WIP may not be in in detail a sample of projects outstanding at the end  treatment of capital work in progress.

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. of the year to ensure they are likely to generate

assets. We also reviewed a sample of assets
transferred out of Capital WIP to check that the
categorisation and value allocated to the relevant
fixed asset class was appropriate.

MANAGEMENT OVERRIDE OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

b

Description Audit work performed Summary of findings

Australian Auditing Standards require that we We reviewed key internal controls at the Council to  The was no evidence of misstatement due to
presume there is a risk that management has the mitigate the risk of management override. We management override of controls noted,
ability to manipulate accounting records and tested the appropriateness of journal entries and

override control that otherwise appear to be other adjustments made in the preparation of the

operating effectively. financial report. We also reviewed accounting

estimates for potential bias, and evaluated the
business rationale (or lack of) of any significant
transactions that are outside of the normal course of
business or that otherwise appeared to be unusual.

6 City of Salisbury Aonuat completion report
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7.1.1 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

AREAS OF AUDIT FOCUS CONTINUED
BN .

CUT-OFF OF GRANT FUNDING AND ACCURACY OF ANY AMOUNTS DEFERRED AT 30 JUNE 2023

Description Audit work performed Summary of findings

There is a risk of error in the calculation of grant We obtained the schedule of grant income No issues were noted in relation to the accounting
income recognised and deferred at the end of the recognised and deferred at year end, We selecteda  treatment of grant funding.

year by reference to grant agreements and sample of grants and obtain the agreements to test

Australian Accounting Standards. that funding had been recognised in accordance

with AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit
Entities.

7 City of Solisbury Annual completion report
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7.11 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

1

INTERNAL CONTROL
HE = 2" uls

CURRENT YEAR

In accordance with ASA 265 Communicating Deficiencies in Internal Control to Those Charged with Governance and Management, we are required to communicate in
writing, significant deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit to those charged with governance on a timely basis,

The standard defines a deficiency in internal control as:
1. Acontrol is designed, implemented or operated in such a way that it is unable to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements in the financial report on a timely basis; or
2. A control necessary to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements in the financial report on a timely basis is missing.

Significant deficiency in internal control means a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in intemal contrel that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, is of
sufficient importance to merit the attention of the Audit and Risk Committee,

Our audit procedures did not identify any significant deficiencies that in our professional judgment are of sufficient importance to merit the attention of the Audit and Risk
Committee,

B City of Salisbury Annual completion report
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7.1.1

BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

INTERNAL CONTROL RISK ASSESSMENT

We have completed the testing of internal controls for the purpose of providing
an audit opinion on Council’s internal controls. This work focuses on controls
exercised by the Council in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment
of money, the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of
liabilities are sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
transactions of the Council have been conducted properly and in accordance
with law.

Our assessment of internal controls is based on the criteria in the Better
Practice Model - Financial Internal Control for South Australian Councils as
issued by the Local Government Association of South Australia,

The Better Practice Model emphasises a risk based approach to internal
financial controls, It states that a Council should design and implement
internal financial controls activities and monitoring systems that prioritise
extreme and high financial risk as identified by the Council’s risk tolerance
framework.

We have been advised by the management that no risk assessment was
performed for this financial year. Instead, self-assessment was performed over
all ‘core controls’ that are suggested per Better Practice Model,

For the purpose of our internal control audit opinion, we have performed ocur
own risk assessment to identify the key financial risks facing the Council,
determine the inherent risk level and evaluate core controls activities to
address this risk, Based on this work, we have not noted any material
exceptions that would lead to a qualification to the audit report on internal
controls,

¥ .

Below is a table that shows the results of the work completed on internal

i
9 .

controls in 2023:

RISK CATEGORY

Strategic Financial Planning
Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Expenses

External Services

Financial Governance

Total

Controls

tested

18

27

87

22

8

18

27

87

Based on the work completed, we have not noted any reportable points or
material exceptions that would lead to a qualification to the audit report on

internal controls,

9 Cty of Salisbury Annual complietion report
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7.1.1 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

OTHER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
YV,

& -‘ ' b -

INDEPENDENCE AND ETHICS

In conducting our audit, we are required to comply with the independence
requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government
{Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and Part 4A of APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including independence Standards).

We have obtained independence declarations from all staff engaged in the audit,

We also have policies and procedures in place to identify any threats to our
independence, and to appropriately deal with and if relevant mitigate those
risks.

We have not become aware of any issue that would cause any member of the
engagement team, BDO or any BDO network firm to contravene any ethical
requirement or any regulatory requirement that applies to the audit
engagement.

BDO has not provided any other services during the audit to City of Salisbury.

The Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 requires the lead auditor to make a declaration
to the directors regarding independence. We are in a position to make this
declaration, a draft of which has been included at Appendix 2,

10 City of Salisbury Annual completion roport

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

We have made enquiries in relation to any non-compliance with laws and
regulations during the course of our audit. We have not identified any instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations as a result of our enquiries,

We have not identified any reportable matters during the course of our audit.

FRAUD

Management have confirmed that there were no matters of fraud identified for
the period under audit, or subsequently. It should be noted that our audit is not
designed to detect fraud however should instances of fraud come to our
attention we will report them to you.

We have not identified any instances of fraud during the course of our audit.
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APPENDIX 1 PROPOSED AUDIT REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE PRINCIPAL MEMBER OF CITY OF SALISBURY

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the financial report of City of Salisbury (the Council), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial report,
including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the certification of
the financial statements.

In our opinion the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material
respects, the Council’s financial position as at 30 June 2023, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, the Local Gevernment Act 1999, and the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of the Council in accardance with the Local Government Act
1999 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
{inciuding Independence Standards) {the Code) that are relevant to our audit of
the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Local Government
Act 1999, which has been given to the Council, would be in the same terms if
given to the Council as at the time of this auditor's report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council’s officers are responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the
Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 and for such internal control as the Council's officers determine
is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Council's officers are responsible for
assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Council’s officers either intend to liquidate the Council or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

11 City of Salisbury Annual completion repost
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APPENDIX 1 PROPOSED AUDIT REPORT CONTINUED

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material 1f, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of this financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is
located at the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website
(http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx) at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

BDO Audit Pty Ltd

Andrew Tickle
Director

Adelaide, 27 September 2023
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT
ON THE INTERNAL CONTROLS OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY

Opinion

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement on the design and the
operating effectiveness of controls established by City of Salisbury (‘the Council’)
in relation to financial transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of
liabilities, throughout the period 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 relevant to ensuring
such transactions have been conducted properly and in accordance with law,

In our opinion, in all material respects:

{a) The controls established by Council in relation to financial transactions
relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition
and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities were suitably designed to
ensure such transactions have been conducted properly and in accordance
with law; and

(b} The controls operated effectively as designed throughout the period from 1
July 2022 to 30 June 2023,
Basis for opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Standard on Assurance
Engagements ASAE 3150 Assurance Engagements an Controls issued by the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

The Council’s responsibilities for the internal controls

The Council is responsible for:

a) The receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal
of property and incurring of liabilities;

b) Identifying the control objectives

c) Identifying the risks that threaten achievement of the control objectives

d) Designing controls to mitigate those risks, so that those risks will not
prevent achievement of the identified control objectives; and

e) Operating effectively the controls as designed throughout the period.
Our independence and quality control

We have complied with the independence and other relevant ethical
requirements relating to assurance engagements, and apply Auditing Standard
ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial
Reports and Other Financial Information, and Other Assurance Engagements in
undertaking this assurance engagement.

Assurance practitioner’s respansibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion, in all material respects, on the
suitability of the design to achieve the control objectives and the operating
effectiveness of controls established by Council in relation to financial
transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money,
acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities.

13 City of Sailsbary Annual completion report
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APPENDIX 1 PROPOSED AUDIT REPORT CONTINUED
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ASAE 3150 requires that we plan and perform our procedures to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether, in all material respects, the controls are
suitably designed to achieve the control objectives and the controls operated
effectively throughout the period,

An assurance engagement to report on the design and operating effectiveness of
controls involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the suitability
of the design of controls to achieye the control objectives and the operating
effectiveness of controls throughout the period. The procedures selected depend
on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks that the controls are not
suitably designed or the controls did not operate effectively. Our procedures
included testing the operating effectiveness of those controls that we consider
necessary to achieve the control objectives identified. An assurance engagement
of this type also includes evaluating the suitability of the control objectives.

Limitations of controls

Because of the inherent limitations of an assurance engagement, together with
any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are suitably
designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved
and so fraud, error, or non-compliance with laws and regulations may occur and
not be detected.

An assurance engagement on operating effectiveness of controls is not designed
to detect all instances of controls operating ineffectively as it is not performed
continuously throughout the period and the tests performed are on a sample
basis. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of controls to future
periods is subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with them may
deteriorate.

BDO Audit Pty Ltd

Andrew Tickle
Director

Adelaide, XX Month 2023
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APPENDIX 2 AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of the City of Salisbury for the year ended 30 June 2023, | have maintained my independence in accordance
with the requirements of APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code), Part 4A, published by the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local Government (Financial Management} Regulations 2011.

Andrew Tickle
Director

BDO Audit Pty Ltd
Adelaide, 27 September 2023
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REVISIONS TO THE PROVISION OF NON-ASSURANCE SERVICES
The Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards (APES) Board has reviewed and ~ AMENDMENTS TO THE FEE-RELATED PROVISIONS OF APES 110 CODE OF ETHICS
revised the Non-Assurance Services (NAS) Provisions in APES 110 Code of Ethics FOR PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS {INCLUDING INDEPENDENCE STANDARDS)
for Professional Accountants (including independence standards) and tssued an To enhance and strengthen the communication between the auditor and TCWG
.ann;ending standarddc;ndu Dec;nber 2022.b"l.'he‘ navisions strengthebg:he and to enable TCWG to have effective oversight over the independence of the
; ndzpe Ide:zz ::::n f:"‘;:’y :ovicri?zzsg r:th‘:i:n:::‘ctci::::ms about auditor, the revised provisions on fees contain new transparency requirements,

' P ' The APES Board has issued an amending standard in relation to the amendments
Amongst the key changes proposed to the non-assurance services provisions are: to the fee-related provisions within the APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
p Strengthened provisions regarding auditor communication. There is now a Accountants (the Code). The key changes include:

requirement for Those Charged with Governance (TCWG) at a public interest » Communication to TCWG at a PIE audit client, the fees and assessment
entity (PIE) audit client to concur with BDO’s assessment of the threats thereof for non-assurance services. The purpose of this communication is to
associated with the non-assurance services prior to the non-assurance services provide the background and context for the client to concur that the fees and
commencing. levels of fees does not impair BDQ's independence.
> A new general prohibition in providing non-assurance services to a PIE audit » Enhanced guidance on identifying, evaluating and addressing threats to
client, if a self-review threat to auditor independence will be created. independence in relation to other fee-related matters, including the
P Further tightening of the circumstances in which materiality may be proportion of fees for services other than audit to the audit fee.
considered in determining the permissibility of a non-assurance service. » Communication of information related to the audit fee to the client and to
Materiality is no longer a consideration for PIE audit clients in assessing the the public to assist them in forming a view that auditor independence is not
self-review threat. compromised.
EFFECTIVE DATE P A prohibition on firms allowing the audit fee to be influenced by the provision
) of services other than audit to the audit client.
The APES Board has advised that these amendments will take effect from 1 July
2023, with earty adoption permitted. P In the case of PIE audit clients, a requirement to cease to act as auditor if fee
dependency on the audit client continues beyond a specified period.
These provisions will be effective for audits and reviews of financial statements
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
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APPENDIX 3 NEW DEVELOPMENTS CONTINUED
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PRACTICAL APPLICATION FOR THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE P If the right to defer settiement of a liability arising from a loan arrangement
To facilitate compliance with the above requirements, your BDO Audit is dependent upon the entity complying with specm'ed {conchttons n that loan
Engagement Partner will discuss and agree on a process, including: arrangement, such covenants only affect the entity’s right to defer
' ’ settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period if the entity
P identifying all entities within a corporate structure to which the revised must comply with the cavenants on or before the end of the reporting
provisions would apply. period.
P Establishing how TCWG have determined that authority for approving services P If a liability could be settled by an entity transferring its own equity
is to be allocated. instruments prior to maturity (e.g. a convertible bond), classification is
P Understanding the information that will be communicated to TCWG to assist determtpe d “’““"f" c:nusvde[migf t:e . off earﬂer' ‘ef“";‘?’;‘ by .
them in concurring with the assessment of the services and fees. conversion to equity, but only if the conversion feature is classified as equity
under 1AS 32.
UPCOMING CHANGES IN FINANCIAL REPORTING AASB 2021-2 AMENDMENTS TO AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS -
AASB 2020-1 AMENDMENTS TO AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - g;srclhczztgi OF ACCOUNTING POLICES AND BEFRRTION OF ACCOUNTING
CLASSIFICATION OF LIABILITIES AS CURRENT OR NON-CURRENT
Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, there EiTective for anngal reporting penods begm'mng on 9' “""’T : Jar.m..ary 2053, this
. et . o new amendment introduces a definition of ‘accounting estimate’, i.e, monetary
are five main changes to the classification requirements within AASB 101 : . . )
Presentation of financial statements: amounts in financial statements that are subject to estimation uncertainty, such
’ as estimating expected credit losses for receivables, or estimating the fair value
P The requirement for an ‘unconditional’ right has been deleted from paragraph of an item recognised in the financial statements at fair value.
69(d) zie(gaﬁsf gov:nants in banking agreements would rarely result fn Accounting estimates are developed using measurement techniques and inputs.
unconditional rights. Measurement techniques comprise estimation techniques (such as used to
P The right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the reporting period. If determine expected credit losses or value in use) and valuation techniques (such
the right to defer settlement is dependent upon the entity complying with as the income approach to determine fair value).
:;‘:d:;egd h:onc::?ons (col\ifen::t:"t the nghtdt_? delerl onty f;ms d:lt reporting The amendments clarify that a change in an estimate occurs when there is either
. TRy Compes CONMNLIONS & Teporing dee. a change in a measurement technique or a change in an input.
P Classification is based on the right to defer settlement, and not intention
(paragraph 73), and
.17 City of Salisbury Annual completion report
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APPENDIX 3 NEW DEVELOPMENTS CONTINUED

There will be no impact on the financial statements when these amendments are
first adopted because they apply prospectively to changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period to which these amendments apply, 1.e. annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2023.

DISCLOSURES

Only ‘material’ accounting policy information must be disclosed in the financial
statements, i.e. if it relates to material transactions, other events, or conditions
and:

P The entity has changed its accounting policy during the period.
P There are one or more accounting policy options in Accounting Standards

P The accounting policy was developed applying the hierarchy in AASB 108
because there is no specific IFRS dealing with the transaction.

P Significant judgement was required in applying the accounting policy.

P The accounting is complex, e.g. more than one IFRS applies to the
transaction,

For further guidance, refer to the ‘Considerations for Management when
determining accounting estimates and related disclosures’ Briefing issued by
IAASB. This Briefing provides an overview of matters for management to consider
in preparing for and responding to the significant revisions in, and the auditor’s
requests pertaining to ASA 540 Revised Auditing Accounting Estimates and
Related Disclosures.,

\__"A

18 Gity of Satisbury Annual completion repoet

Page 32
Audit and Risk Committee Agenda - 10 October 2023

City of Salisbury




7.1.1 BDO's Annual Completion Report for year ending 30 June 2023

APPENDIX 3 NEW DEVELOPMENTS CONTINUED

ASIC GUIDANCE FOR DIRECTORS ON FEATURES OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE THAT SUPPORT AUDIT QUALITY

ASIC recently updated Information Sheet 196 Audit quality - The role of directors and audit committees (info Sheet 196) to include a new section, What features of an
audit committee support audit guality?, which is based on the |05C0 report on geod practices for audit commitiees in supporting audit quality (issued January 2019).
The key features of a supportive audit committee are summarised in the diagram below:

Commmtiee has

Majority anct
Chair should be
independent

Non-executive understanding of
‘

directors only financial reporting

& audt & inchustry

Committoe
o meet often
enough 1o satisly
responsibilites

Mambers have
necessary skills &
questiomng

attitude

Support of
secretary and/or
other resources

yody to |
with ¢

oxpress their vieews au

Report activities to support audit quality to full Board how Conduct peer sssessments of porformance of each
issues raised by auditor were addressed) mombet and of its own effectiveness
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APPENDIX 3 NEW DEVELOPMENTS CONTINUED
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ASIC GUIDANCE FOR DIRECTORS ON FEATURES OF AN AUDIT COMMITTEE THAT HOW CAN BDO HELP?
SUPPORT AUDIT QUALITY (CONTINUED)

BDO’s IFRS & Corporate Reporting team has specialist expertise in financial
Info Sheet 196 also includes sections explaining: reporting, including international financial reporting standards (IFRS) and other
P Why audit quality is important. financial reporting regulatory matters, and we can help train or provide advice to
your committee on a variety of topics. Please contact us for more information,

The auditor’s responsibilities

The roles of directors and audit committees

The directors responsibilities for auditor independence
Whao should manage the appointment of auditors

What matters should be considered when setting audit fees

vy v wyvyyy

How directors and audit committees can promote audit quality

P Possible reporting considerations for directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS SHOULD HAVE GOOD FINANCIAL REPORTING
KNOWLEDGE

Three of the seventeen features that an audit committee should have to support
them with quality are related to financial reporting knowledge, i.e.:

P At least one member should have good financial reporting knowledge
{preferably the Chair)

P Committee members as a whole should have an appropriate understanding of
financial reporting and audit.

P There should be introductory and ongoing training for audit committee
members on financial reporting.
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APPENDIX 4 CLIMATE RISKS AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

CLIMATE RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

In December 2022, in anticipation of the release of forthcoming sustainability
standards, the Australian Government opened its first round of consultation on
‘Climate-related finangial disclosures’. The process closed in February 2023,
when the Government received nearly 200 responses,

In June 2023, the |SSB issued Its first two sustainability standards:

P IFRS 51 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial
Information, and

P IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures.

According to the I1S5B, these standards become effective from 1 January 2024,
subject to endorsement in each respective jurisdiction,

The day after the 1S58 standards’ release, the Australian Government announced
its second round of consuitation on implementing climate-related financial
disclosures in Australia,

WHICH ENTITIES WILL BE IMPACTED?

One of the key changes is a revised approach to the order of entities being
introduced to mandatory climate-related reporting. While the previous
consultation paper suggested focusing on large listed and large financial service
providers, the new approach includes listed and non-listed organisations. The
focus is still on the size of the organisation - starting with the ‘big end of town’ -
and organisations that meet the reporting requirements of the National
Greenhouse and Energy Reporting (NGER) Scheme.

The introduction of mandatory reporting will still phase in (now across four
years) to allow the market to upskill and prepare.

To find out when the climate-related reporting requirements may impact you,
and what category you fall into, refer to BDO's IFRS & Corporate Reporting
team’s ESG and Sustainability insights and the proposed roadmap as set out by
Treasury.

WHAT HAPPENS NEXT?

Organisations of all sizes - whether listed or private - should take note of the
group they fall into to anticipate what the mandatory reporting implications
might be, both now and with consideration of any future growth plans.

Regardless of status, entities should also assess and reflect on the organisations
in their supply chain. With Scope 3 emissions - as required to be measured and
reported under IFRS S2 - a reflection of the emissions from an organisation’s
supply chain, organisations of all sizes are likely to be impacted by the
intraduction of mandatory reporting. As group one entities begin to measure and
report emissions, Scope 3 could become a key component of emission reduction
strategies. By having accurate, reportable data and a decarbonisation strategy,
organisations of all sizes can positively impact their supply chain before
mandatory reporting even knocks on their door.

To understand more about what this means for your business, please contact our
National Sustainability Team.
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WHAT IS ESG?

ESG is the acronym for Environmental, Social and Governance. It is a holistic
concept about an organisation's ability to create and sustain long-term value in
a rapidly changing world, and managing the risks and opportunities associated
with these changes,

ESG metrics are not part of mandatory financial reporting required by
Australian Accounting Standards or International Financial Reporting Standards,
but organisations across the world are increasingly making disclosures in their
annual report or in a standalone sustainability report.

ESG is used as a framework to assess how an organisation manages risks and
opportunities that changing market and non-market conditions create. ESG also
puts a heavy emphasis on risk management, because monitoring and mitigating
risks across all three dimensions is an important priority for any company that
is serious about ESG. The three categories of ESG factors are as follow:

P Environmental factors address an organisation’s environmental impact and
environmental stewardship. it is focused on improving the environmental
performance of an organisation,

P Social factors refer to how an organisation manages relationships with, and
creates value for, stakeholders. The social dimension is focused on an
organisation’s impact on its employees, customers and the community.

P Governance factors refers to an organisation’s leadership and management
philosophy, practices, policies, internal controls, and shareholder rights.
The governance dimension is focused on an organisation’s leadership and
structure,

OUR BUSINESS

WHY IS ESG IMPORTANT FOR YOUR BUSINESS?

Investors across the globe are increasingly demanding organisations to outline
their ESG framework and approach in order to assess the organisation’s long-
term sustainability. ESG has a potentfal significant impact on the following
fundamental business issues relevant to the long-term success of the
organisation:

» Corporate reputation - ESG can enhance a company's license to operate
making it easter to accomplish business objectives and respond to crisis
scenarios with key stakeholder groups.

> Risk reduction - ESG can assist with the identification of immediate and
long-term risks depending on the industry and business model.

» Opportunity management - Shifting market and non-market conditions can
expose unmet needs for new products and/or services, potential customer
bases, and potential strategic relationships for addressing ESG Issues.

» Culture & intrinsic value - ESG maturity is an indicator of a company’s
commitment to building a high performing, purpose-driven workforce and
inclusive culture,

A robust ESG strategy can help attract the right talent and investors. To
achieve a shift in sustainability we need to stop viewing ESG as a ‘nice to
have’, it should be part of business strategy and risk management which can
have a direct and positive impact on financial performance,

If you would like to speak with us about implementing an ESG framework in
your organisation or providing assurance on your framework, please contact
your audit engagement partner initially.
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Gty of Salisbury Telephone 08 8406 8222
ABN B2 615 416 895 Facuimile 08 8281 5466
A aity @salisburysa gov.au
34 Chuich Street
\ PO Box 8 www.salsbury sa govau
LU hll!bﬂfy SA 5108
Salisbury A
Andrew Tickle
BDO Audit Pty Ltd
422 King William Street
ADELAIDE SA 5000 11 October 2023
Dear Andrew,

AUDIT FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023 OF CITY OF SALISBURY

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial report of City
of Salisbury for the year ended 30 June 2023, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to
whether the financial report presents fairly in accordance with the Australian Accounting
Standards.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such enquiries as we
considered necessary for the purposes of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial report

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in your engagement letter dated 23 February
2023, for the preparation for the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011; in particular that the financial report presents fairly in
accordance therewith,

2, We have established and maintained adequate internal controls to facilitate the preparation
of a reliable financial report and adequate records have been maintained. Any and all
deficiencies in internal control of which we are aware have been communicated to you,

3. We confirm that the selection and application of accounting policies remains appropriate,
and that there have been no changes to the accounting policies applied in the previous
annual financial statements or the methods used in applying them.

4, We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying values, or
classification, of assets and liabilities.

5. The entity has satisfactory title to all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets that have not been disclosed, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

6. All significant judgments related to accounting estimates have taken into account all relevant
information of which management is aware and the selection or application of the methods,
assumptions and data used by management in making the accounting estimates are consistent
and appropriate,

7. The assumptions used in determining accounting estimates and related disclosures
appropriately reflect management’s intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action
on behalf of the entity.

8. Disclosures related to accounting estimates, including disclosures describing estimation
uncertainty, are complete and reasonable within the context of the applicable financial
reporting framework.
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9. The appropriate specialised skills or expertise has been applied in making the accounting
estimates as applicable.

Books, records and documentation

10. We have provided you with:
«  Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial report such as records, documentation and other matters;
«  All minutes of meetings held by the Council and its Committees since the end of the
previous reporting period have been given to you for your inspection, where requested;
=  Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
« Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary
to obtain audit evidence.
11.  All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial report.

Related parties

12. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions.

13. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards in the financial report.

Fraud

14, We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of
accounting and internal control systems that are designed to prevent and detect fraud.

15. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial report
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

16. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the entity and involves:
«  Management;
« Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
«  Others where fraud could have a material impact on the financial report.

17. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
fraud, affecting the entity’s financial report communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators or others.

Litigation and claims

18. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects
should be considered in the financial report; and accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards.

Compliance with laws and regulations

19. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible non-compliance with laws and
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial report.

20. There have been no instances of non-compliance of laws and regulations involving
management or employees who have a significant role in internal control.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance
with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices that could have a material effect on the
financial report,

20f3
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Subsequent events

21. All events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial report and for which adjustment
or disclosure are required, including but not limited to accounting estimates have been
adjusted or disclosed.

Other information
22. We have informed you of all the documents that we expect to issue which may comprise
other information accompanying the financial report.

23. The financial report and any other information obtained by you prior to the date of the
auditor’s report are consistent with one another, and the other information does not contain
any material misstatements.

Electronic presentation of Financial Report

24, We are responsible for the electronic presentation of the financial report.

25. We will ensure that the electronic version of the audited financial report and the auditor's
report on the web site will be identical to the final signed hard copy version.

26. We will clearly differentiate between audited and unaudited information in the construction
of the entity’s web site as we understand the risk of potential misrepresentation.

27. We have assessed the controls over the security and integrity of data on the web site and
that adequate procedures are in place to ensure the integrity of the information published.

28. We will not present the auditor’s report on the full financial statements with extracts only of
the full financial statements,

Yours faithfully,
Client Signature: Client Signature:
John Harry, Charles Mansueto,
Chief Executive Officer, General Manager Business Excellence,
City of Salisbury. City of Salisbury.
3o0f3
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ITEM 7.1.2
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

DATE 10 October 2023
HEADING End of Financial Year Statement and Analysis
AUTHORS Melissa Hamilton, Team Leader Revenue, Business Excellence

Sadaf Hashim, Assistant Accountant, Business Excellence
CITY PLAN LINKS 4.2 We deliver quality outcomes that meet the needs of our
community

SUMMARY This report and the associated attachments provides the Audit and
Risk Committee with the information required to review
the Annual Financial Statements for 2023 in accordance with
the requirements of the Local Government Act 1999.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Receives the information.

2. Notes that the Audit and Risk Committee, in accordance with Section 126(4)(a) of the
Local Government Act 1999, reviewed the annual financial statements of the Council
for the year ended 30 June 2023 and is satisfied they present fairly the state of affairs of
Council.

3. Approves, in accordance with Regulation 22 of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 clauses (3) (a) and (4), that the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chair of the City of Salisbury Audit and Risk Committee sign the statement to
certify the independence of the Council Auditor, BDO Australia.

4. Approves that the draft analysis of the Annual Financial Statements, as presented in
Attachment 1 to this report (Audit and Risk Committee 10 October 2023, Item 7.1.2),
be included in the End of Year Financial Statements Report to Council.

ATTACHMENTS

This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:
1. Proposed Council General Business Item

2.  City of Salisbury Annual Financial Statements 2023

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 Section 126(4) of the Local Government Act 1999 details the functions of an
Audit and Risk Committee which includes

(a) reviewing annual financial statements to ensure that they present fairly the
state of affairs of the council
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1.2 Regulation 22 part 3 of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 requires annually that the Chief Executive Officer and the
presiding member of the Audit and Risk Committee certify the independence of
the council auditor for the respective financial year.

2. CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION
2.1 Internal

2.1.1  This report provides the mechanism for consultation and communication
with the Audit and Risk Committee regarding the City of Salisbury’s
Annual Financial Statements for the year ending 30 June 2023.

2.2 External

221 The Annual Financial Statements have been reviewed by Council’s
external auditor BDO Awustralia.

3.  REPORT

3.1 The City of Salisbury’s Annual Financial Statements for 2023 have been prepared
in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011, the Australian Accounting Standards
and the South Australian Model Financial Statements 2023.

3.2 The City of Salisbury’s Audit and Risk Committee is required under section
126(4)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999 to review the annual financial
statements to ensure that they present fairly the state of affairs of the Council.

3.3 Our external auditors, BDO Australia, have conducted their review of the Annual
Financial Statements for 2023, and are awaiting the Audit and Risk Committee’s
review prior to signing their audit opinion, after which the Annual Financial
Statements for 2023 can be certified and then adopted by Council.

3.4 The Chief Executive Officer and the Mayor will sign the Certification of the 2023
Annual Financial Statements following the Audit and Risk Committee review,
and it should be noted that this is also required by BDO Australia prior to them
furnishing their audit opinions on the Annual Financial Statements and Internal
Controls for 2023.

3.5 A timeline shown below demonstrates the process that is required to be followed
to sign off the Annual Financial Statements for 2023.
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Sign off Process Annual Financial Statements for 2023
Finance and Mayor and CEO be
Corporate Services wtgm? si‘:f the
. on
Committee Financial Statements
Monday 17 July 2023 for 2023
c= -
Audit Committee 'mmh-e;“ \\\ Audit Committee Chair ‘\\
Tuesday 10 October present faisty the state 7 Amﬁ"mf&ﬁil 7/
of affairs of Council /’ Stat t "4
2023 s16le)a) G Act S tateman /
S T
Mayor and the CEO CEO and General N
oft "Cartification of \,  Statements, Auditor
Wednesday 11 N N o i, oo \, independence Stmt,
0 . g0 7 Certification & ’
October 2023 Add date to Note 1 of Management Mangement Rep Letter 4
financial statemants Represaatotion latier /g to N&ug{t,gg_svi_/":
Send out in business
Wednesday 11 ’,3,°, :,,,dmu&._c:oumm 14 with coverl
October 2023 (';mcnml Statu:cn:s and m *€nd of VN?‘
Midd ay Internal Contral Opinions} Statements and
snd Balance Dote Letters Analysis”

Council Monday 23 Councll resolve to
October 2023 >> et

3.6 An analysis of the Annual Financial Statements and results for the year will be
presented to Council on 23 October 2023, and a draft copy of that report is
attached to this report for the Audit and Risk Committee’s reference and review.

3.7 Independence of Council Auditor

3.71  Regulation 22 of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 provide in clauses (3) (a) and (4) that:

(3) The following persons must each provide, on an annual basis, a
statement that provides a certification as to compliance for the
relevant financial year with the requirement that the auditor be
independent of the council, council subsidiary or regional subsidiary
(as the case may be):

(@) In a case involving a council or council subsidiary — the chief
executive officer of the relevant council and the presiding
member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the relevant body;

(4) A statement under sub-regulation (3) must accompany the financial
statements for the relevant body.
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4. CONCLUSION/PROPOSAL

4.1

4.2

4.3

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 have been
prepared by Council Administration and have been audited by the City of
Salisbury’s external auditor BDO Australia. Following the review of the Annual
Financial Statements for 2023 by the Audit and Risk Committee, the Statements
will be certified by the Chief Executive Office and the Mayor and then BDO
Australia will sign their audit opinion.

It is appropriate for the City of Salisbury’s Audit and Risk Committee following
its review of the Financial Statements to endorse, in accordance with
Section 126 (4)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999, that they present fairly the
state of affairs of Council and also that the external auditor’s independence be
certified in accordance with Regulation 22 of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011.

The draft analysis of the Annual Financial Statements, as presented in
Attachment 1 be recommended by the Audit and Risk Committee for inclusion in
the End of Year Financial Statements Report to Council.
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ITEM
ITEM
COUNCIL
DATE 23 October 2023
HEADING End of Year Financial Statement and Analysis 2023
AUTHORS Melissa Hamilton, Team Leader Accounting Services, Business
Excellence

Sadaf Hashim, Assistant Accountant, Business Excellence

CITY PLAN LINKS 4.2 We deliver quality outcomes that meet the needs of our
community

SUMMARY The City of Salisbury end of year processes for the financial year
ended 30 June 2023 have been finalised and audited by Council’s
external auditor BDO Australia. This report provides detail of
actual results compared to prior year actuals and to the budget

position.

The annual financial statements have also been reviewed by the
Audit Committee at the meeting on 10 October 2023, Further
Council’s external auditors are satisfied that they present fairly the
state of affairs of the Council

RECOMMENDATION
1. Receives the information
2. The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 be adopted.

l'o be considered by Coungil 23 October 2023

ATTACHMENTS
This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:
1. Annual Financial Statements for year ended 30 June 2023

1.  BACKGROUND

1.1 Regulation 10 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations
2011 requires the Council to

(1) ..prepare and consider a report showing the audited financial results of each
item shown in the statement of comprehensive income and balance sheet of the
budgeted financial statements of the Council, ... for the previous financial year
compared with the estimated financial results set out in the budget presented in a
manner consistent with the Model Financial Statements.

City of Salisbury Page 1
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ITEM

(2) ...council’s operating surplus ratio, net financial liabilities ratio and asset
renewal funding ratio compared with estimates set out in the budget presented in
a manner consistent with the Model Financial Statements.

2.  CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION
2.1 Internal

2.1.1  This report provides the mechanism for consultation and communication
with Council regarding the City of Salisbury’s Annual Financial
Statements (AFS) for the year ending 30 June 2023. This report has been
reviewed by the City of Salisbury’s Audit and Risk Committee at the
meeting held 10 October 2023 and feedback from the Committee has
been included into the 2023 AFS.

22 External

221 The AFS for 2023 have been audited by Council’s Auditors, BDO
Australia, and they have provided an unqualified audit opinion.

3.  REPORT

3.1 The City of Salisbury’s Financial Statements for the 2023 financial year have
been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999, the Local
Government  (Financial Management) Regulations 2011, the Australian
Accounting Standards and the South Australian 2023 Model Financial Statements.

3.2 Inaccordance with Section 126(4)a) of the Local Government Act 1999 the Audit
Committee advised that it has reviewed the annual financial statements of the
Council for the year ended 30 June 2023 and is satisfied they present fairly the
state of affairs of Council.

33 The external auditors BDO Australia have conducted their audit and have
provided an unqualified audit opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

34 The following comments are provided with respect to the 2023 AFS, with
commentary highlighting significant movements® year on year,

3.5 Please note the date convention that has been used in this report, where 2023
refers to the 2022/23 financial year and 2022 refers to the 2021/22 financial year.

4. FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS
4.1 Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year on Year Comparative
4.1.1  The Statement of Comprehensive Income shows an Operating Surplus

before capital amounts and other comprehensive income of $11,954k
compared to $13,369k in the prior year.

4.1.2  Whilst the Operating Surplus has decrcased by $1,415k from the prior
year, there are a number of contributing and offsetting variances. Income
has overall increased by $7,390k from the 2022 financial year, with the
main contributing factor being Rates Revenue increasing by $5,659k
compared to the previous financial year. Also contributing is Grants,
Subsidies and Contributions that has increased by $1,608k. This is as a
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ITEM

result of the early receipt of 100% of the 2023/24 Financial Assistance
and Untied Local Roads Grants (FA&ULG) compared to 75% carly
payment in 2022 with a net impact of $3,796k noting that the quantum of
the grant has also increased by approximately S1M, offset by lower than
budgeted State Government Grant and Roads to Recovery Grant funding.
Other income items have remained relatively consistent and detailed in

later paragraphs.

4.1.3  Overall expenditure has increased by $8,805k from the previous financial
year, with increases in Employee Costs $2,101k due to EB increases and
other various movemenis relating to staff levels and leave payments,
Materials, Contracts and Other expenses $4,119k due to increases in
various materials and supplies and contractual services and increases in
Depreciation totaling $2,360k, Further details on these movements are
outlined in the paragraphs below.

4.1.4  Rate Revenue has increased by 5.31% from $106,594k in 2022 to
$112,253k in 2023, being an increase of $5,659k. Council endorsed a
3.5% average rate increase for residential properties and an average 3.9%
rate increase for commercial properties in the 2023 year compared to a
2.8% increase in 2022. Also contributing to this increase is growth in the
number of rateable properties and development activities increasing
overall valuations.

4.1.5  Stawtory Charges have increased by 7.60%, being an increase of $278k
from $3,656k in 2022 to $3,934k in 2023. The most significant impacts
are increases in Building and Planning Fees of $320k primarily as a
result of some large-scale commercial developments commencing that
attracted sizeable fees, plus higher volumes of external building
application work undertaken. Further, Parking fines, Expiations and
Penalties have also increased by $21k. Offsetting are the decreases in
Animal Registrations and Fines fees of $45k and other Sundry Statutory
Charges of $21k.

4.1.6  User Charges have increased by 3.69%, being an increase of $192k from
$5,193k in 2022 to $5,385k in 2023, with increases in Cemetery charges
of $122k associated with higher number of burials and increase in
cemetery charges. Building lease income has increased by $101k
primarily relating to Commercial leasing income. Other user charges
relating to Bridgestone Kiosk Sales $105k and Aged Care Program $89k
have also increased due to a higher level of community engagement
within these areas and a return to normal activity after the period of
COVID. This is partially offset by the reduced water supply charges of
$291k with lower non-residential sales compared to 2022 as a result of
more rainfalls during the year.

41.7  Grants, Subsidies and Contributions have increased by 8.62% from
$18,650k in 2022 to $20,258k in 2023, being an increasc of S$1,608k.
The Financial Assistance Grant total for 2023 was $14,.284k compared
with the 2022 total of $11,534k. This is as a result of an advance
payment of four quarters of 23/24 being received in late 2023, compared
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to the three quarter advance payment of 22/23 received in 2022 (as
shown in the figure below [A] & [B]).
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Financial Assistance Grant 2022 2023

Details of Payment S$'000s  S'000s  Notes

Standard Payvment 4,828 3,782 <)

Advance Payment 6,706 10,502 (Al &([B)
11,534 14284

[A] 2022 Advance Payment represents estimated three quarters of the next years

allocation.

[B] 2023 Advance Payment represents estimated four quarters of the next years

allocation.

[C] Standard Payment represents 2022 and 2023 remaining allocations paid
during the year.

Offsetting this increase, is the decrease in the Roads to Recovery grant of

$384k and $827k decrease in other numerous State Government Grants

received during the year compared to the 2022.

4.1.8  Investment Income has increased by $181k from $110k in 2022 10 $291k
in 2023 primarily as a result of an increase in the interest rates during the
year; with an average interest rate on the short-term investments for 2022
being 0.35% and for 2023 being 3.35%.

4.1.9  Reimbursements have increased by 27.48% or a $115k increase from
$421k in 2022 to $536k in 2023 which primarily relates to $102k
Emergency Services Levy reimbursements received upon reassessment
of Council owned properties for a period dating back to 2017/18,

4.1.10  Other Income has increased by 23.39% from $1,034k in 2022 to $1,276k
in 2023 being an increase of $242k, which is primarily a result of $199k
profit share received related to the performance of the Recreation
Centres.

4.1.11  Equity accounting has been applied to the NAWMA regional subsidiary,
with a Net Gain — Equity Accounted Council Businesses of $340k which
is associated with NAWMA's equity position, a net Loss of $321k which
is City of Salisbury's share of NAWMA operating deficit, and $222k
share of other comprehensive income associated with NAWMA Asset
revaluations, This is a total net gain of $241k compared to the prior year
of $1,225k gain, which was largely resulting from NAWMASs operating
surplus of $2.4M.

4.1.12  Employee Costs have increased by 5.49%, increasing from $38,303k in
2022 1o $40,404k in 2023. The EB adjustment of 2,5% for both MOA
staff and LGE staff, plus other various movements relating to staff
increments and reclasses, and oncosts have contributed to this increase.
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4.1.13  Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses has increased by 7.49%, being
an increase of $4,119k from $54,974k in 2022 to $39,093k in 2023, Key
areas contributing to the increase are Elections 3684k, Business
Transformation Project $454k, Operating expenditure relating to Capital
Programs $391k, Cyber Security $260k and Telecommunications $154k.

There are also increases in the operational areas such as Parks and
Landscape maintenance $654k, mainly related to verge mowing expense
$472k, Park Maintenance $320k and Tree Pruning/Removal S163k.
Further contributing to the overall increase is NAWMA Waste
Management cost increase of $565k primarily within  Kerbside
Greenwaste $205k, and Water Management $738k primarily related to
Site Management $324k and Water Treatment $113k.

Offsetting these increases is $469k low expenditure associated with the
Street Lighting program and $410k less expenditure in the Kerb and
Gutter Replacement Program in the 2023 financial year,

Various other increases/decreases have occurred throughout the 2023
year as a result of variations in contracts, materials and other factors.

4.1.14  Depreciation costs have increased by $2,360k from $29,746k in 2022
compared to $32,106k in 2023, This is primarily related to the valuation
of Road and Bridge Assets resulting in an overall increase of $2,153k in
this asset category. Also contributing is an increase year on year relating
to new and donated assets being brought on stream $856k and an
increase in buildings $613k primarily related to the upgrade of Burton
Community Centre and the acquisition of Salisbury Bowling Club. This
is partially offset by a decrease of $1,482k in Drainage assets resulting
from a change in useful life of drainage pipes from 100 years to 150
years, Various other increases/decreases associated with incremental
adjustments to unit rates and indexation flowing from the prior year
revaluation have also contributed to this overall variance.

4.1.15  Finance Costs have decreased by 19.78% being a decrease of $97k from
$491k in 2022 to $394k in 2023, which primarily results from a decrease
in Council’s long-term borrowings and only short-term cash advances
required in 2023,

4.1.16 Net Loss — Equity Accounted Council Businesses of $321k which is
associated with NAWMA''s operating deficit, with the comparison year
on year described in paragraph 4.1.11.

4.1.17  Asset disposal and fair value adjustments, amounts received specifically
for new or upgraded assets and physical resources received free of
charge, which are all items below the operating surplus, are discussed in
detail in the budget and variance analysis below (section 5.5).

4.1.18  Share of Other Comprehensive represents City of Salisbury’s share of
NAWMA'’s asset revaluation being $222k with the comparison year on
year described in paragraph 4.1.11.
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4.2 Statement of Financial Position 30 June 2023

421 The Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023 shows Net Assets
(Total Assets less Total Liabilities) or “Equity’ has increased by 18.28%
or $319M from $1,745M in 2022 to $2.064M in 2023.

422  Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment has significantly increased
from $1,725M in 2022 to $2,046M in 2023 and is partially due fo
additions to our asset portfolio of $58.9M. Also contributing to this is
the net asset revaluation increments totaling $297.4M, primarily being
revaluation increments for Land $172.5M, Land Improvements $19.5M,
Buildings $7.9M and Infrastructure $97.6M. Offsetting these increases is
depreciation totaling $28.3M and disposals of assets renewed or replaced
$4.7M. Further to the significant increase in Infrastructure Assets is an
increase in Capital Works in Progress from $29.8M in 2022 to $32.6M in
2023, which is primarily associated with the accelerated infrastructure
program.

423  Cash held by Council has increased by $1,483k, from $9,485k in 2022 to
$10,970k in 2023 mainly due to the 100% early receipt of 23/24
Financial Assistance & ULR Grant in 2023, compared to the 75% ecarly
receipt of 22/23 FA&ULR Grant in 2022, ’

424  As contained in AFS Note 15 ‘Financial Indicators’, Net Financial
Liabilities have increased $4,442k from $19,505k to $23,947k, with the
position as a proportion of total operating income, increased from 14.2%
to 16.6%. Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less
financial assets expressed as a percentage of total operating revenue.,
Both the cash holdings and total financial liabilities have remained
relatively the same as the last financial year contributing to this ratio of
16.6%, which is well inside the target range of less than 70% endorsed by
Council for this indicator.

425  The Asset Renewal Funding Ratio has trended upwards to 103% after the
low results of 88.6% in 2022 and 76% in 2021 (noting 2020 was
103.5%). Due to the impact of COVID-19, the 2021 and 2022 ratios were
low with the delays in the delivery of infrastructure program and
significant carry forwards and retiming of capital renewal program.
‘While there are still market pressures in completing works, the ratio has
retumed to the normal level and is within the target range of 90% to
110% as per the 2023 LTFP and the Strategic Asset Management Plan.
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4.3 Statement of Cash Flows 30 June 2023

431  The Statement of Cash Flows shows a net increase in cash and
investments of $1,485k, compared to a net decrease of $316k for the
prior financial year, resulting in a cash balance of $9,485k as at 30 June
2023,

432  Net cash provided by Operating Activities at 30 June 2023 was $49,367k
as compared with $47,604k in 2022, being an increase of $1,763k. This
increase is primanily related to $6,954k higher rate revenue received in
2023 from $105,223k in 2022 to $112,177k in 2023 primarily as a result
of an average rate increase of 3.5% for the 2023 year. Another
contributing factor is Grants, Subsidies and Contributions that have
increased by $1,628k from $18,915k in 2022 to $20,543k in 2023. This is
essentially due to an carly receipt of 100% of the approximated 2023/24
Financial Assistance and Untied Local Roads Grants (FA&ULG)
compared to the 75% in the prior year. Offsetting this revenue is the
increased cash outflows for Matenals, Contracts and Other Expenses
being $4,170k higher compared to the previous financial year and
payments to employees, increasing from $38.233k in 2022 to $40,099k in
2023 which reflects the EB increases, increments and reclasses and
associated on-costs.

433  Net cash used in Investing Activities has increased from $45,694K in
2022 to $46,728k in 2023, This mainly relates to higher cash outflows
for Renewal/Replacement of Assets which has increased by $2,746k
from $21,043k in 2023 compared to $18,297k in 2022; plus higher cash
outflows of $8,323k for the New/Upgraded Assets from $39,574k in
2023 compared to $31,251k in 2022,

434  Net cash used in Financing Activities relates solely to Council’s
investment and borrowing activities. Overall net cash used in financing
activities has decreased by $1,072k from $2,226k in 2022 to $1,154k in
2023, which is mainly related to reduction in repayments, such as long-
term loan borrowings from $1,735k to $1,321k and lease liabilities from
$R06k to $29k.
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5. BUDGET ACTUAL ANALYSIS
5.1 The analysis below is based on the comparison between the actual end of year

results for the year ended 30 June 2023, and the 2023 original budget. Comment is

made only to variances greater than $100k unless there are significant issues that

need to be brought to members' attention.

City Of Salisbury
Statement of Comprehensive income
As at 30 June 2023
End of Financial Year
Actual Original Budget Variance
$'000 $'000 $'000
Income
Rates Reveoues 112,253 112,011 243
Statutory Charges 3933 2,848 1,085
User Charges 5,385 5410 {25)
Grants, Subsidies & Contributions 20,258 14,317 5,940
investment income pas n 220
Reimbursement 536 289 248
Other income 1276 980 296
Net Gain - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 340 - 340
Total Income 144,272 135,926 8,346
Expenses
Employee Costs 40,404 42,534 2,130
Matarials, Contracts and Other Expanses 59,093 54,862 (231}
Deprecistion, amortisation & impairment 32106 31,856 {250)
Finance Costs 394 1.444 1,050
Net Loss - Equity Accounted Council Businesses n - {321}
Total Expenses 132,318 134,697 2,379
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 11,954 1229 10,724
Asset Disposal and Fair Value Adjustments 310 2,440 {2,130}
Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 6799 1.770 5,029
Physical Resources Recelved Free of Charge 1,955 1.000 955
Net Surplus/(Defieit) " 21018 6,439 14,579
Other Comprehentive income
Changes in Revaluation Surplus - |PPAE 297,472 47,617 249 855
Share of other prehensive i - equity d p iyl - w2
councll businesses
Total Other Comprehensive income 297 694 47617 250,077
Total Comprehensive income 318712 54,056 264 656
(1} Trassferred to Equity Stasement
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5.2  Waterfall Analysis

521  The graph below shows the major components contributing to the
increased surplus achieved in 2023 compared to budget. Following the
graph is a table which provides a high-level commentary on the
variances, with more detail contained in section 5.3 of this report.

e

2023 Verlarm ey
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“{1} People Costs is expenditure category “Employee Costs™ less agency costs for backfilling vacancies,
short term positions funded through the salary and wages provision and agency costs to deliver grant
funded services which are disclosed within “Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses™

{2) Treasury Costs is income category “Investment Income™ together with savings on expenditure category
“Finance Costs™

{3) Matenals, Contracts and Other Expenses have been adjusted for the vanance in Agency costs for
backfilling vacancies, which has been adjusted against People Costs,

2023 Variances

Statutory The variance primarily relates to higher than budgeted Development

Charges Planning and Building Fees received $1,084k higher, with other
statutory charges in alignment with the original budget.

Grants The significant variance results from higher than budgeted Financial
Assistance Grant and Untied Local Roads Funding $5,706k with
equivalent of 100% advance payment received in 2023 compared to
the budget of only 75% and the budget being conservative compared
to actual. Also contributing is additional Developer Open Space
Contributions $334k compared to original budget,

People Costs Various Wages and Salaries savings of $2.IM across the
organisation, partially offset by lower capitalisation of staff time
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$1.0M being a net saving of $1.1M, unbudgeted COVID-19 special
leave $315k, and overtime payment $244k.

Treasury Higher levels of cash held throughout the year than anticipated has
resulted in higher interest income of $220k and lower interest costs
incurred than anticipated as CAD's were needed to be drawn down
for a short period of time only at the last quarter of the 2022/23
financial year resulting in interest expenditure savings of $1.0M.
Other Income The variance primarily relates to higher than budgeted Recreation
Centre operating profit of $198k and Workers Compensation Bonus

of $43k.
Materials, Overall the Materials, Contracts and Other expenses are in
Contracts & | alignment with the budget with a minor variance of $231k, however,
Other taking out the effect of higher agency costs of $1,274k as mentioned

under People costs, there is a favourable variance of $1.1M. This
mainly relates to lower than anticipated Kerb and Gutter
Replacement Program of $836k, Street Light Maintenance cost of
$708k, NAWMA Waste Management cost of $491k and Operating
expenditure relating to Capital Programs of $662k. This is partially
offset by higher than budgeted Election costs $532k (noting that this
is offset by carried forward funds), Salisbury Water Business Unit
higher than budgeted electricity costs due to increase water
treatment $183k, Verge Maintenance $249k and Tree and Stump

Removal $173k.
Net gain/loss — | The favourable variance of $19k reflects Council's share of results
Equity in the Regional Subsidiary NAWMA. Council's net loss of $321k is
Accounted in accordance with the NAWMA operating deficit for the 2023
Business financial year, however, offsetting this loss is the Council’s share

adjustment based on the ‘Cumulative Share’ as per their Charter,
recognised separately as a net gain of $340k. Further, with
NAWMAs asset revaluation, Council’s share has also increased by
$222k recognised under Other Comprehensive Income. Profit/Loss
on share of joint ventures are not budgeted due to the uncertainty of
what will be distributed at the end of vear.

5.3 Income Analysis
5.3.1 — i 24

The favourable varance is primarily the result of final valuation
increases from development actmty on adopuon compared with budget,

532

The favourable variance is pnmanly due to h:ghcr than budgeted
Building and Development Lodgment fees and Planning fees of $1,084k
primarily associated to a higher number of applications processed during
the financial year, and also some larger scale applications.

533 ser Charges — VO ri 2

The user charges overall are in alignment with original budget
predictions. However, Cemetery charges are higher than budgeted $281k
primarily related to Cemetery license income $173k as a result of an
increase in pre-need licenses purchased during the year, $33k higher than
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budgeted Cemetery Burial Fees and $22k higher income related to
Mausoleum Perpetual Care Fund income. Further, with increased
community cvents, Property lease income is $66k higher than original
budget primarily in Commercial leases and increased event activity
particularly at Bridgestone Athletics Centre has resulted in $110k higher
than budgeted income for the 2023 year.

Offsetting these favourable variances is lower than budgeted Salisbury
Water User charges $545k primarily as a result of a decrease in non-

534

Financial Assistance Grant and Untied Local Road funding of $5,706k
with equivalent of 100% advance payment received in 2023 compared to
the budget of only 75% and the budget being conservative compared to
actual. Also, unbudgeted developer contributions totaling $334k which
were also received, however these are restricted contributions and will be
expended in upcoming years within the required terms for expenditure.

There are also a number of minor variances associated with various grant
funded programs received during the 2023 year.

535 i ~ Fav Vari 4%

The favourable variance is primarily the result of various reimbursements
received relating to works or services undertaken by Council with
associated costs incurred within  Materials, Contracts and Other
Expenses, with the key arcas being Recreational Services Contract
Management S109k offset by expenditure and an unbudgeted S102k
Revenue SA reimbursement received in relation to a reassessment and
subsequent correction of Emergency Services Levy charges for Council
owned properties for a period dating back to 2017/18. Normally, amounts
received as reimbursements relate to costs incurred within the materials,
contracts and other expenses classification. Also impacting are numerous
small amounts primarily from private works that are offset by the
expenditure incurred.
536 Income — Fav. I i k
The favourable variance is related to higher than budgeted Recreation

Centres operating profit of $198k and Workers Compensation Bonus of
$43k.

537 N in — Equi coun il Busi — Favourable Vari
$340k

The favourable variance of $340k reflects Council’s share of equity
position in the Regional Subsidiary NAWMA. This is offset by a net
Loss of $321k which represents Council’s share of NAWMA''s operating
deficit, resulting in an overall gain of $19k. Council also has a share in
the other comprehensive income of $222k with an overall net increment
of $241k in Council’s equity share of this rcgional subsidiary.
Profit/Loss on share of joint ventures are not budgeted due to the
uncertainty of what will be distributed at the end of year. Profit/Loss on
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share of joint ventures such as NAWMA are budgeted to be a nil impact
to ensure that Council is forming budgets that are sustainable without
these equity impacts, and noting that NAWMA is not intended to
generate surpluses,

Expenditure Analysis
538 - Vari 0

The favourable varance is related to Wages and Salaries savings
inclusive of oncosts of $1,950k across the organisation. However, from a
resourcing perspective, there is agency costs of $1,274k above budget
associated with the backfilling for these vacancies, which is reported in
Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses below,

Further, Workers Compensation costs is also $180k lower than budgeted

as a result of a decrease in the estimated percentage rate from the
previous year (4.10% in 2023 as compared to 4.20% in 2022).

539

with the original budget with a minor variance of $231k, however, taking
out the effect of higher agency costs of $1,274k as mentioned under the
Employee costs above, there is a favourable variance of $1.1M. This
primarily relates to Street Light Electricity savings S708k and lower than
anticipated Kerb and Gutter Replacement Program $836k related to the
Road Reseal Program, with these funds camried forward to the 2024
financial year, Further, NAWMA Waste Management expenditure is also
favourable $491k, primarily related to a Domestic General Waste (red
bin services) cost reduction due to the transfer of green waste from
domestic refuse. This was as a result of Council's green waste bin rollout
program. Also contributing to the favourable variances against original
budget predictions is operating expenditure relating to Capital Programs
$367k as a result of the timing of the delivery of operating projects
throughout the 2023 year.

Further, PC lease expense have ended the year $451k favourable, as a
result of the impacts of the accounting standard AASB 16 Leases,
however this impact is offset by the associated costs in depreciation in
line with the standard. Cyber Secunity also ended in $133k favourable
variance with funds carried forward to 2023 financial year.

These favourable variances, however, are offset by higher than
anticipated Election costs $532k (noting revised budget included carried
forward funds of $464k), Salisbury Water Business Unit higher than
budgeted electricity costs due to increased water treatment S183k, Verge
Maintenance $249k and Tree and Stump Removal $173k, plus other
various minor variances contributing to the overall variance at year end.

53.10  Depreciation Costs — Unfavourable Variance S250k
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The overall depreciation expense has remained relatively aligned to
original budget expectations with the unfavourable vanance primarily
related to unbudgeted IT leased assets of S420k, partially offset by $228k
lower than anticipated depreciation costs on Infrastructure assets,

The favourable vanance in Infrastructure assets is primarily the result of
an increase in useful life for drainage pipes from 100 years to 150 years.
This is partially offset by an increase in depreciation as a result of the
audit and subsequent revaluation of Road and Bridge Assets, which was
unknown at the time of formulating the budget. Some of the other
contributing factors include significant increase of Tonkin unit rate
between 51.3% and 75.3% for road seals and the acquisition of the
Salisbury Bowling Club during the 2023 financial year.

5.3.11  Finance Costs — Favourable Van 1.050

The favourable variance relates to the timing of cash receipts and
disbursements, with the budget allowing for the drawdown on cash
advance debentures to fund the infrastructure program. This, however,
was required only for a short period of time during the last quarter of the
2023 financial year accumulating interest of $33k. This is due to the
significant level of carry forwards at the 2023 end of financial year for
$28.1M ($22.3M capital and $5.8M operating) and returned funds of
$4.5M. As a result finance costs are $1.1M favourable against original
budget expectations.

5.4 Non-Operating Items Analysis

S4.1  Net Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets is $2,130k unfavourable to budget,
resulting primarily from the carly renewal of assets which necessitates
the writing off of the remaining value, and totals $4,741k for 2023, This
includes Building Assets of $1,910k, Land Improvement Assets $355k
and Infrastructure Assets $1,876k. All of these assets have been renewed
or replaced carlier than expected given the lives of these assets, resulting
in a residual value needing to be written off.

The original budget also anticipated a gain of $2.4M for net proceeds
from property sales based on the pipeline of projects at the time of sefting
the budget. However, net proceeds from property sales was $1.2M
related to the Hoyle Green Development and $4.4M related to the sale of
the land at Ryans Road. These proceeds were offset by the assets
disposals mentioned above resulting in a net position of $310k for the
2023 financial year.

542  Amounts specifically for new or upgraded assets were favourable
$5,029k primarily as a result of timing of grant funding received, with
the receipt of LRCI grant funds $4.3M, the Salisbury Aquatic Centre
$2.6M and the Grassroots Facilities Program $1.2M being major funding
received. Also contributing to the favourable result is $3.6M grant
income received in 2022 but deferred to 2023 financial year to align with
the construction of these assets. Similarly, offsetting these favourable
variances is the $6.8M grant funding deferred to 2024 financial year in
accordance with the assets’ construction stage.
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543  Physical resources received free of charge represents the assets donated
to Council which are associated with external property development,
with typical assets being road, kerbing, footpaths, drainage, and verges. It
should be noted that the budget is an estimated figure due to the
complexities involved in determining the expected levels of donated
assets. There has been a total of $1.9M worth of assets donated to
Council during the 2023 year, all comprising of Infrastructure Assets,

5.5 Other Comprehensive Income Analysis

5§51  Changes in Revaluation Surplus — IPP&E resulted in a favourable
variance to budget of $250M. Budgeting for infrastructure revaluations
is inherently complex, however the variance is the result of revaluation
increments for Land $172.5M, Land Improvements $19.5M, Buildings
$7.9M and Infrastructure $97.6M.
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5.6 Statement of Financial Position Analysis

5.6.1  The Statement of Financial Position for 2023 is set out below and details
the actual end of financial year position against the original endorsed
budget. Commentary has been made on significant variances between the
estimates as presented at the adoption of the budget and the 2023 end of

year position,
City OF Salisbury
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2023
End of Financial Year
Actual Original Budget Variance
$000 $000 $000
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1097 . 10,970
Trade and Other Receivables a0 6,230 1845
Invertories 0 1,787 (1,518)
Total Current Assets 19314 07 u,ﬂl
Non Carrent Assets
Financial Assets 652 w m
Equity Accounted Investments in Councll Businesses 5,290 4824 1,466
Infrastructure, Property, Pant and Equipment 2,046,434 LRSI 316,859
Other Non-Current Assets 34, 636 22322 12,414
Total Non Current Assets 2083.023 1,757,151 330872
Total Assets 2,107,337 1,705,368 342,169
Current Liabifities
Cash Advance Debentures . 152,992} 32,992
Trade and Other Payabies {35,476} [RR AL 117,729)
Borrowings {L410) (1,409} 1)
Provisions {5.385) {10,370 4,785
Current Liab-Other 1,645 - 1,645
Total Current Liabifithes (40.62%) (82,321) AL 98
Non Current Liabilities
Borrowings 12.359) (4,6%8) 239
Provisions {668) {2,208) 1,536
Total Non Current Liabilities (3,027} (6,902) 1875
Total Liabilities (43,553} {89,225} 45,572
Net Assets 2,061,684 1675942 347,790
Equity
Accumlated Surplus {304.07a) {403 ,420) (6%4)
Asset Revaluation Ressrves {3,610.577) (1.235.378) {375,199
Dther Reseres {49,033 {37,344} {11,889)
Total Equity {2.063,684) (1675 942) (387,742)

56.1  The Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023 shows a
favourable variance when compared to budget for Net Assets (Total
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Assets less Total Liabilities) or *Equity’ of $387.7M. This variance is
primarily made up of the following items:

* Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment is $316.7M higher than
originally budgeted, with higher levels of additions than originally
planned and higher revaluation adjustments, partly offset by capital
carry forwards of $22.3M to the 2024 financial year.

= Other Non-current assets are $12.4M higher than budget estimates,
which is primarily the result of higher than anticipated infrastructure
projects in progress at the end of 2023. The budget was set with the
last known actual result (30 June 2022), as it is expected to remain
relatively static, although the mix of projects will of course change
over time.

= Liabilities are overall lower than budget by $45.6M predominantly
due to the Original Budget including an expectation that Council
would need to drawdown on Cash Advance Debentures $52.9M which
was required only during the fourth quarter to the extent of $7M and
fully repaid at the end of 2023. This was a result of the level of carry
forwards of $28M and the level of returned funds $4.5M, noting that
carried forward funds will potentially increase our cash requirements
in 2024,

5.7 Financial Indicator Analysis

5.7.1  The Financial Indicators as presented in the original budget are set out
below and have been compared to actual results for the 2023 financial
year. Also included are adjusted Financial Indicators which normalise the
ratios for the timing of the Financial Assistance Grant,
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" tndorsed | 202223 | 202223 | Varlanceto | [ 202223 | Varianceto
Operating | Originel Actuals Original Adjusted Original
Harge Budget Budgrt Actualy Budgrt
Operating Surpius Ratia o5%-5% 090% [EN 7.4% Sa% 498
Net Financial Liabilies Ratio 0% “oan 1685 aan 17.0% aan
Asset fisrean] Funding Eatic 20-110% 100.0% 103.0% 30% N/A N/A

572  The operating surplus ratio of 8.3% is a favourable variance of 7.4%
when compared to budget. However, when adjusted for the year on year
timing impact of the early receipt of the 2024 Financial Assistance Grant,
plus the advance payment in the prior year of the 2023 Financial
Assistance Grant the ratio decreases to 5.8%, which continues to be a
favourable variance of 4.9% to budget. Excluding the Grant receipts, the
main factors contributing to this variance are Statutory charges $1,085k
(Paragraph 5.3.2), plus lower expenses such as Employee costs $2,130k
(Paragraph 5.4.1) and Finance Costs $1,050k (Paragraph 5.4.4), with
variances detailed in referenced paragraphs. The current endorsed
operating range for this indicator is 0.5%-5%.

573  Net Financial Liabilities was 16.6% for 2023 which is favourable by
44.2% when compared to the original budget, primarily as a result of our
budget expectations that we would be in a drawn down position on Cash
Advance Debentures of $52.9M in 2023, and primarily as a result of the
budgeted infrastructure program. CAD drawdowns were ultimately
required only to the extent of $7M in the final quarter of the financial
year and were fully repaid by the end of the 2023 financial year. This was
primarily as a result of the timing of the delivery of the infrastructure
program, and the level of carry forwards of $28M will likely result in
higher drawdowns in 2024. The actual result of 16.6% falls within the
current endorsed operating range for this indicator, being less than 70%.

574  The Asset Renewal Funding Ratio of 103% is a favourable variance of
3% when compared to budget and is higher than the previous two
financial years® ratios of 88.6% in 2022 and 76% in 2021. Due to the
impact of COVID-19, the 2021 and 2022 ratios were low with the delays
in the delivery of infrastructure program and significant carry forwards
and retiming of capital renewal program. While there are still market
pressures in completing works, the ratio has returned to the normal level
and is within the target range of 90% to 110% as per the 2023 LTFP and
the Strategic Asset Management Plan.

6. CONCLUSION/PROPOSAL

6.1.1  The Annual Financial Statements for 2023 have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable Australian Accounting Standards and
legislative requirements, and are recommended for adoption.
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City of Salisbury

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Salisbury
A progressive, sustainable and connected community
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Certification of Financial Statements

We have been authorised by the Council to certify the financial statements in their final form.

In our opinion:

+ the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial
Management) Regufations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards,

the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position at 30 June 2023 and the resulls
of its operations and cash flows for the financial year,

+ internal controls implemented by the Council provide a reasonable assurance that the Council's financial records are
complete, accurate and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year,

+ the financial statements accurately reflect the Council's accounting and other re:
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Introduction

Each year, individual Local Governments across South Australia are required to present a set of audited Financial Statements
to their Council and Community.

About the Certification of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements must be certified by the Chief Executive Officer and Mayor as ‘presenting a true and fair view’ of the
Council's financial results for the year and ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the Financial Statements across
Counclf,

What you will find in the Statements

The Financial Statements set out the financial performance, financial position and cash flows af@uncil for the financial year
ended 30 June 2023, d

The format of the Financial Statements is standard across all South Australian Cou omgilies with both the accounting
andmpefﬂngqumdmdhnmmmmmandmemm g South Australia Model

1. Statement of Comprehensive Income
A summary of Councif's financial performance for the yea, lstin

2. Statement of Financial Position )
A 30 June snapshot of Councif's financial pasiion including

3. Statement of Changes in Equity ?
The overall change for the year (in

4. Statement of Cash
Indicates where Co
About the Notes to the

The Notes to the Financial S! memmmmmmmmmmel

Statements.
About the Auditor's Reports

Councif's Financial Stalements are required o be audited by external accountants (that generally specialise in Local
Government).

In South Australia, the Auditor provides an audit report, with an opinion on whether the Financial Statements present fairly
the Councii's financial performance and position,

About the Independence Certificates

Council's Financial Statements are also required to include signed Certificates by both the Council and the Auditors that the
Council's Auditor has maintained its independence in accordance with the requirements of the Local Gavernment Act 1999
angl the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011,

Who uses the Financial Statements?

The Financial Statements are publicly available documents and are used by (but not limited to) Councillors, Residents and
Ratepayers, Employees, Suppliers, Contractors, Customers, the Local Governmaent Association of South Australia, the SA
Local Government Grants Commission, and Financiers including Banks and other Financial Institutions.

Under the Local Government Act 1999 the Financial Statements must be made available at the principal office of the Council
and on Council's website,
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City of Salisbury

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2023

$ '000 Pesies

Income

Rates 20
User charges Z
Grants, subsidies and contributions - operating 2g
Investmaent income 24
Reimbursements 2
Other income 2
Net gain - equity accounted council businesses 19{a3
Total income

Expenses

Employee costs

Materials, contracts and other expenses
Deprectation, amortisation and impairment
Finance costs

Net loss - equity accounted council businesses
Total expenses

Operating surplus / (deficit)

Physical resources received free of charge
Asset Disposal and Fair Valus Adjusiments
Amounurocowodspodﬂawtormmupgmed

106,593
3,656
5,193

18,650

11

421

1,034

1,225
136,883

38,302
54,974
29,746

491

123514
13,369

2,865
(5,388)
2,895

13,741

Net surplus / {deficit)

Other comprehensive income

Amounts which will not bo rec

operating result o

Changes in revatuation sufp » o 297,472
Share of other comprehensiy ome - e ountéd council 18 222
oo :

Total amounts which will net & ified subsequently to

operating result ) SV 297694
Total other comprehensive income 297,694
Total comprehensive income 318,712

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

166,371
166,371

166,371
180,112
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City of Salisbury

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2023

$ '000 Pesies

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets
Trade and Other Receivables
Inventories

Subtotal

Total current assets

R

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables 5
Equity accounted investments in councll businesses fit
Other non-current assets 8c
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment 7
Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade and Other Payables
Borrowings

Provisions

Subtotal

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Pravisions s
Total non-current liabilities:
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net assets

EQUITY

Accumulated surplus

Asset revaluation reserves 4a
Other reserves b

Total council equity
Total equity

The above Stalement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

43,653
2,063,684
403,343
1,610,577
49,764
2,063,684

2,063,684

9,485
6,955
1597

18,037
18,037

1,008
6,049
31,423
1,725408
1,763,888

71,781,925

20,066
1,727

7904
29,897

29,697
5,349
1807
7,256
36,953
1,744,972
385,015
1,313,105

46,852
1,744,972

1,744,972
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City of Salisbury
Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Asset

Accumulated  revaluation Other Total
$'0006 L) surplus reserve reserves equity
2023
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 385,016 1,313,108 46,852 1,744,972
Net surplus / {deficit) for year 21,018 - - 21,018
Other comprehensive income
- Gain {Loss) on Revaluation of | PP&E 7a - 207,472 - 207 472
Share of OCI - equity accounted council
businesses 222 - - 222
Other comprehensive income 222 297472 - 297,694
Total comprehensive income 21,240 2974720 - 318712
Transfers between reserves 2912) & 2912 -
Balance at the end of pericd 40334341 2,083,684
2022
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 37,568 1,564,860
Net surplus / (deficit) for year - 13,741
Other comprehensive income
- Gain {Loss) on Revaluation PP 168,371 - 166,371
Other comprehensive - 166,371 - 166,371
Total comprehensive i 13,741 166,371 - 180,112
Transfers between reserves {9284) - 9,284

Balance at the end of period; i 385,015 1,313,105

46,852 1,744,972

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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City of Salisbury
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2023
$ '000 Nobos 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities
Recaipts
Rates 112177 105,223
Statutory charges 4078 3,783
User charges 5213 5,710
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions (operating purpose) 20,543 18,815
Investment receipts 272 m
Reimbursements 536 421
Other receipls 14,827 15,608
Payments
Payments to employees (40.269) {38,233)
Payments for Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses (B87.614) (63.444)
Finance payments _(491)
Net cash provided by (or used in) operating activities i 47,604
Cash flows from investing activities
Net disposal of investment securities -
Sale of real estale developments 79
Amaounts received specifically for now or upgraded assets 2,808
Sale of replaced assets 547
Sale of surplus assets 243
Repayments of loans by community groups 32
Distributions Recewved from Equity Accounted Coy (73)
Expenditure on renewalreplacement of ass8 (21,043) (18,297)
Expenditure on new/upgraded assets (39.574) {31,251)
Devsiopment of real estate for e 883 58
Capital contributed 10 e # Councsl businesses (340) 73
Net cash provided (or used sting activitic _(48,728) (45,694)
Cash flows from financi '
Receipts
Proceeds from bonds and d 196 315
Payments
Repayments of Borrowings {1.321) (1,735)
Repayment of lease liabilities (29) (808)
Net cash provided by (or used in) financing activities (1,154) (2,226)
Net increase (decrease) in cash held 1,485 (316)
plus: Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of period , 9,485 9,801
Cash and cash equivalents held at end of period - 10970 = 9485
Additional information:
plus: investments on hand - end of year L 615 615
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 11,585 10,100
The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policles adopted by Council in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below,

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unfess otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of preparation

1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared on a going concem basis using the historical cost convention in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as they apply 1o not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legisiation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under reguiation 14 of the
Management) Regulations 2011 dated 11 Oclober 2023.

Government (Financial

1.2 Historical cost convention
Except as stated below, these financial statements have been prepared in sggordance wi cost convention,
1.2 Critical accounting estimates ' '

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Au 2
accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement 0

The areas involving a higher degree of
the financial statements are specifically re

requires the use of certain critical
cil's accounting policies.,

5 and estimates are significant to

1.3 Rounding - : :
All amounts in the financial Staeme ?:,‘-- ded to the nearest thousand dollars (§'000).
(2) The local government raporti

City of Saksbury is incorporated 1§outh Australian Local Government Act 1999 and has its principal place of business
at 34 Church Street, Salisbury. Thesgfinancial statements include the Council’s direct operations and all entities through which
Council controls resources to carry on its functions.

Other entities in which Council has an interest but does not control are reparted in Note 19,

(3) Income recognition

The Council recognises revenue under AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities or AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with
Customers when appropriate.

In cases where there is an enforceable contract with a customer with sufficiently specific performance obligations, the
transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 where income is recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied
(l.e. when |t transfers contral of a product or service 10 a customer). Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which
the Councll expects to be entitied in a contract with 2 customer.

In other cases, AASB 1058 applies when a not-for-profit (NFP) entity enters into transactions where the consideration to
acquire an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable the entity to further its objectives.
The excess of the asset recognised (at fair value) over any related amounts is recognised as income immediately, axcept in
the case where a financial asset has been received to enable the council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-finandcal
assel that is to be controlied by the coundil. In this case, the council recognises the excess as a liability that is recognised over
time in profit and loss when (or as) the entity satisfies its obligations under the transfer.

continued on next page ... Page 9 of 56
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In recent years the payment of untied grants (financial assistance grantsfiocal roads/supplementary grants) has varied from
the annual allocation as shown in the table below:

Payment Received In
Financial Year Advance Commants
$'000
2020/21 4,737 Relates to 2021/22
2021/22 6,706 Relates to 2022/23
2022123 10,502 Relates 1o 2023/24
Because these grants as applicable for the current reporting period are untied, the Austral ng Standards require
that payments be recognised upon receipl. Accordingly, moopenwmam been distorted compared

the differences between the actual grants received and the grants entitle

(4) Cash, cash equivalents and other financial inst

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on'h
in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of &

Receivables for rates and annual charges, bear interest at rates determined In
accordance with the Local Government Act” generally unsecured and do not bear interest.

All receivables are reviewed allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is
considerad doubtful

All financial instruments are date of recognition. A detailed statement of the accounting poficies
applied to financial i

Inventories held in respect of stores 2 o been valued by using the weighted average cost on a continual basis, after adjustment
for loss of service potential. Inventories heid in respect of business undertakings have been valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value,

5.1 Real estate assets developments

Real Estate Assets developments have been classified as Inventory in accordance with AASE 102 Inventories and are valued
at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes the costs of acquisition, deveiopment, borrowing and other costs
incurred on financing of that acquisition and up to the time of sale. Any amount by which cost exceeds the net realisable value
has been recognised as an expense.

Revenues arising from the sale of property are recognised in the operating statement when settlement is completed.
5.2 Other real estate held for resale

Properties not acquired for development, but which Council has decided to sell as surplus to requirements, are recognised
at the carrying value at the time of that decision.

continued on next page .., Page 10 of 56
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(6) Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment
6.1 Initial recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assels acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as
fair value at the date of acquisition,

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and depreciated as soon as
the asset is held ‘ready for use’. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental
1o the acquisition, including architects’ fees and engineering design fees and ali other costs incurred. The cost of non-current
assets constructed by the Council includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead.
Wulwksmmmaummm“mmdummmmmd transferred to infrastructure,
property, plant and equipment when completed ready for use. o

6.2 Materiality

Assets with an economic Iife in excess of one year are only capitalised whefe
thresholds established by Council for each type of asset. In determining {afd it
Is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service iife.

Examples of capitalisation thresholds apphed during the year e difitiosed in Nol 7. No captalisation threshold is applied
fo the acquisition of land or interests in land, ) b7 N

6.3 Subsequent recognition

a magylar bas thaat the carrying values are not materially different from fair
value. Significant uncertainties existin the estimalion of fairvaiue of @ number of asset classes including land, buildings and
asscciated structures and infrastiioius } urther detar! of ths '21, inties and of existing valuations, methods and valuers

ant and equipment assels recognised are systematically depreciated over their
the opinion of Council, best reflects the consumption of the service potential

Depreciation methods, useful lives and resdual values of ciasses of assets are reviewad annually; these reviews are conducted
aither internally or externally through the completion of asse! audits and valuations.

Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are detailed in Note 7. Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have
been estimated based on the best information avallable to Council, but appropriate records covering the entire ife cycle of
these assets are not available, and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimates.

6.5 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets have been accounted for in accordance with the requirements of AASB 138 Intangible Assets. An item s
recognised as an intangible if it meets the definition of an intangible asset, if is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to Council and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible Assets are tested for impairment yearly or when there is objective evidence or an indication that these assets may
be impaired. Further determinations on useful lives are reviewed annually.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

6.6 Impairment

Assets whose future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and where the fulure economic
benefits would be replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not subject to impairment testing.

Other assets that are subject {o depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in Greumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment ioss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (which is higher of the present value of future cash inflows or value in use).

Where an asset that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such amounts as stands
to the credit of that class of assels in the Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being recognised as an expense.

(7) Payables
7.1 Goods and Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and;
these amounts.

7.2 Payments Received in Advance and Deposits

Amounts received from external parties in advance of service dalives
to Council assets, aroroeomlseduubmaunﬁwnsm 3

as the case may be. In accordance with AASS 1058 i 0
assets has been recognised as payments regeived’

iithe present value of fulure cash flows assoclated with
rolates, and is recorded as part of 'Payables’.

Liabiities for employees’ entitiements t mmmmmmewwumamm
twotvommofmpom\gddommdalnommdmn(Mw&bWM)Mhm
with AASB 119 Employee Benefits,

Liabliities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settied within twelve months are measured as the present vaiue of
the estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up o the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government guaranteed securities rates with similar matunity
terms.

No accrual is made for sick leave as Council experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each reporting period
Is less than the entitiement accruing in that period, and this experience is expected 1o recur In future reporting periods. Council
does not make payment for untaken sick leave.

9.2 Superannuation
The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the HostPius Superannuation
Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. No changes in accounting policy

have occurred during either the current or previous reporting periods. Details of the accounting poficies applied and Council's
involvement with the schemes are reported in Note 18.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(10) Leases

The Council assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Lease arrangements have been accounted for in accordance with AASE 16 Leases which was applied by Council for the first
time from 1 July 2019,

10.1 Council as a lessee
The Council recognises lease labilities to make lease payments and nght of use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

i) Right of Use Assets

The Council recognises right of use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Righlt ¢ are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any tefeasurement bf iease liabilties. The cost

of right of use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initig
or before the commencement date lass any lease incentives received and e
leased asset. Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis o
usefud ives of the assets, Land is amortised over a period of 30, .

Plant and equipment 3to 5 years
Water Harvesting Site < :

The right of use assets are also subject to igig s
it} Lease Liabilities

date of the wase, NG| re #s lease liabilles measured at the present value of lease
payments 1o be made over .. g ’ MuMdbuemymemanoundluu‘mhmml

The Council applies the short term i§iSe recognition exemption to its short term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date). It aiso apphes the low value assets
racognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considerad to be low value. Lease payments on short term leases
and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(11) Equity accounted Council businesses

Councll participates in cooperative arrangements with other Councils for the pravision of services and facilities. Council's
inerests in cooperative arrangements are accounted for in accordance with AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Jain!
Ventures and set out In detad in Note 19.

(12) GST implications
In accordance with Interpretation Abstract 1031 "Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax'

* Receivabies and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.

Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable.
» Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.
+ Amounts inciuded in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

continued on next page ... Page 13 of 56
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(13) New accounting standards and UIG interpretations

The Council applied for the first-lime certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022, New standards and amendments relevant 1o the Council are listed beiow. The Council has not early
adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Standards issued by the AASE not yet effective

The AASB has issued Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2023, these
standards have not been adopted by Council and will be included in the financial statements on their effective date. Where
the standard is expected to have a significant impact for Council then further information has been provided in this note,

The following list identifies all the new and amended Australian Accounting Standards, and Interpretation, that were issued
but not yet effective at the time of compiling these illustrative statements that could be applicable'fe i

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 20

» AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australlan Accounting Standards - C iCatio bifitie
Current (amended by AASB 2020-6 Amendments to Australian Acodd ication of Liabilities as

Current or Non-Current - Deferral of Effective Date, AASB 2022-6 g Standards -
Non-current Liabitities with Covenants)
«  AASB 2021-6 Amendments fo Australian Accounting SRS iRisclosu B Accounting Policies: Tier 2 and Other

053 Application of Tiers of Australian

Auslralien Accounting Standards, (Thbswndudmaka me
] s — Simplified Disclosures for

Accounting Standards, June 2010 and AA
For-Profit and Not-for Profit Tier 2 Enitiis

dards - Disclosure of Accounting Policles and Definition of
Standards as follows: AASE 7 Financial Instruments:

+ AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Austrailani
bases for financial instruments is expected to be material to

Disclosures ~to clar

an entity's financiai Stlsment: AASE jentation of Financial Statements - to require entities to disclose their
material accounting policginformation tather pir significant accounting policies, AASB 108 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting - 1o clarify how entities should distinguish changes in accounting policies
and changes in 134 Interim Financial Reporting - to identify material accounting policy
information as a componel te set of financial statements, AASB Practice Statement 2: Making Materiality
Judgements - to provide guid on how 1o apply the concept of materiality {0 accounting policy disclosures)

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

«  AASB 2022-5 Amendments to Austrafian Accounting Standards - Lease Liabitty in & Sale and Leaseback. (This
Standard makes amendments to AASB 16 Leases, February 2016. These amendments arise from the issuance of
interational Financial Reporting Standard Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16) by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in September 2022)

+ AASB 2022-10 Amendments lo Ausiralian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets of
Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities (This Standard makes amendments 10 AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement, August
2015 for application by not-for profit public sector)

(14) Comparative figures

To engure comparability with the current reporting period’s figures, some comparative period line items and amounts may
have been reclassified or individually reported for the first time within those financial statements and/or the notes,

(15) Disclaimer
Nothing contained within these statements may be taken to be an admission of any liability to any person under any
circumstance,
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 2. Income

$ '000 2023 2022
(a) Rates
General rates
General rates 111,231 106,199
Less: mandatory rebates {1,308) (1,267)
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions and Write Offs __{a01) (868)
Total general rates 109,524 104,063
Other rates (including service charges)
Green Adelaide Board Regional Landscape Levy 225 2,110
Salisbury Business Association Separate Rate & 163 127
Giobe Derby Community Club Separate Rate T
Total other rates (including service charges) 2,244
Other charges
Penalties for late payment 286
Total other charges 1306 286
Total rates 112,253 106,593
{b) Statutory charges
Development Act fees 1,391 1,232
Town planning fees SO 1,052 802
Animal Registration Fees and Bine 834 879
Parking fines / expiation fees 240 224
Other Licences, Fees and Fines 416 429
Total statutory charges 3,933 3,656
(c) User charges
Water Supply 1,966 2,257
Property Lease 1,028 926
Cemetery Fees 769 648
Aged and Disability Services 783 619
Waste Disposal Fees 63 78
Sundry 776 665
Total user charges 5,385 5,193
(d) Investment income
Interest on investments
- Local Gavernment Finance Authority 200 25
- Banks and Other 91 70
- Loans to community groups - 16
Total investment income 291 11
continued on next page ... Page 15 of 56
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2. Income (continued)
$ '000
{e) Reimbursements

Other
Contract Maintenance
Total reimbursements

(f) Other income

Rebates received
Sundry
Total other income

(g) Grants, subsidies and contributions

Amounts received specifically for new or upgraded assels
Total

Other grants, subsidies and contributions
Other grants, subsidies and contributions
Untied Financial Assistance Grant
Individually Significant item - Addition
Total other grants, subsidie:

Total grants, subsidieS 8 ibu
The functions to which these grants, subsidias and contributions refate are disclosed

in Note 12, with the exception of Amounts Received Specificallly for New or Upgraded

(i) Sources of grants
Commonwealth Government
State Government

Other

Total

(ii) Individually significant items
Advanced Financial Assistance Grant Recognised as income

427
109

536

6,798
6,799

5,974
3,782
10,502
20,258

27,057

5609
21,011

437

27,057

10,502

2022

203
128

421

726
308

1,034

2,895
2,895

7116

4,828
6706
18,650

21,545

2,946
16,677
1,922
21,545

6,706

On 29 June 2023, Council recelved advance payment of 100% of the 2024/2025 Financial Assistance Grant. totalling $10,502k
(comprising $8,442k in general purpose funding and $2,060k in untied local road funding) compared to the 75% received in
advance in the prior year. This has materially increased Councif's operating results in the current year, as these amounts are
recognised as income upon receipt, as detailed in Note 1. Potential matenial effects will be experienced when the timing of

these grant payments are once again restored to a normal schedule.

continued on next page ...
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2. Income (continued)

$ '000 2023 2022
(h) Conditions over Grants and Contributions

Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they be expended

for specified purposes or in a future perod, but which are not yet expended in
accordance with those conditions, are as follows:

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 4661 4,602
Less:
Expended during the current period from revenues recognised in pravious reporting
periods
Verge Development (341)
Newtyn Terrace Parafield Gardens - Tree Screen Renew 4 (284)
Animal Pound Pooraka > U -
Burton Community Hub - Shed and Community Garden (250)
Whites Rd Emu Crossing - School Zone and Pedestrian Crossing (250)
Strowan Park Picnic and Open Space % (174)
Tea Tree Gully Business Advisory Services , (164)
Morelia Community Centre Outdoor Kitchen (144)
Twelve25 Entry Upgrade and Landscaping (143)
Twelve 25 Spedial Projects = (80)
OHAS - Special Distribution Fund S | - (30)
Risk and Govemance - Special Distribution Fung. - (8)
Mindset for Life Program — k- 0. - (3)
Mawson Lakes School - Kiss and Drop . -— (54) (100)
Redhill Road Ingle Farm - Traffi ' (64) -
Waterwatch ‘ (152) 1)
Salisbury Oval Indoor Co (200) (111)
Other {233) (205)
Little Para River Capital Works = (255) -
Fairbanks Drive Reserve Toilets and Sports Facility {305) -
Yalumba Drive Reserve (400) -
Technology Drive Mawson Lakes - Dual Traffic ) _(450) _ (479)
Subtotal (2,602) (2.835)
continued on next page ., Page 17 of 56
Page 82 City of Salisbury

Audit and Risk Committee Agenda - 10 October 2023



7.1.2 City of Salisbury Annual Financial Statements 2023
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2. Income (continued)

$ ‘000 2023 2022
Plus:

Amuntsmcogrﬁsodurgmmhdﬂsmpaﬁnypaiodb&dnotyﬂnpmdcdin

accordance with the conditions
Salisbury Aquatic Centre

Salishury Recreation Precinct Entry Carpark .
Domestic Hard waste 273
Other 180
Waterwatch General 152
Little Para River Capital Works 37
CCTV Henderson Square -
Animal Pound - Pooraka 489
Technology Drive Mawson Lakes - Dual Traffic 450
Yalumba Drive Reserve 400
Fairbanks Drive Toilets and Sports Facility 305
Salisbury Oval Indoor Community Cricket Facility 200
Redhill Road Ingle Farm - Traffic improvements 64
Mawson Lakes School - Kiss and Drop 54
Subtotal 2,804
Unexpended at the close of this reporting period 3,655 4,661
Net increase (decrease) in assets -t to conditior
period {1,006) 59
(i) Physical resou 7
Land and Improvements 1 ¢ ] 11 -
Roads, Bridges and Footpaths | 859 725
Stormwater drainage \ 1085 2,140
Total physical resources received free of charge , 1,955 2,865
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Expenses

$ ‘000 Noles 2023 2022
{a) Employee costs
Salaries and wages 33.261 32,198
Employee leave expense 5,582 5,233
Superannuation - defined contribution plan contributions t8 524 587
Superannuation - defined benefit plan contributions th 3453 3,075
Workers' compensation insurance 1,698 1,667
Less: capitalised and distributed costs , (4,115) (4457)
Total operating employee costs 40,404 138,303
Total number of employees (full ime equivalent at end of reporting period) 418
(b) Materials, contracts and other expenses
(i) Prescribed expenses
Auditor's remuneration
« Auditing the financial reports as 33
- Other auditors 8 -
Bad and doubtful debts 1 2
Elected members' axpenses 503 489
Election expenses 728 44
Lease expense - low value assets /s 134 123
Subtotal - prescribed P 1,420 691
(ii) Other materials, contract
Contractors 39,722 37,271
Energy 4081 4,375
Legal expenses ) 538 21
Levies Paid to Government - Regio 8 Ape 2,140 2112
Levies - other 306 275
Parts, Accessories and Consumables 3,164 3,223
Insurance 1,321 1,161
Water Rates 703 849
Sundry : 5,698 4,806
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts and Expenses B 57673 54283
Total materials, contracts and other expenses 59,093 54,974
continued on next page ., Page 19 of 56
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Expenses (continued)
$ 000 2023 2022

(c) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

(i) Depreciation and amortisation
Infrastructure 15677
Land improvements 6,093
Buildings and Other Stnuctures 4,337
Ptant and Equipment 3,070
Right-of-use assels 420
Library books 149
Subtotal 29,746
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment 29,746
(d) Finance costs
Interest on loans 413
Interest on leases 78
Total finance costs 491
Note 4. Asset Disposal a
$'000 I 2022
Infrastructure, Property, B
(i) Assets renewed or dire
Proceeds from disposal : 434 547
Less: carrying amount of assets sold ) (4415) _(5.684)
Gain (loss) on disposal _ (3,981) (5,137)
(ii) Assets surplus to requirements
Proceeds from disposal 5110 243
Less: carrying amount of assets sold ) (1,115) (573)
Gain (loss) on disposal - 3995 (330)
Real estate development assets
Proceeds from disposal 1,230 179
Less: carrying amount of assets sold B (934) (100)
Gain (loss) on disposal 296 79
Net gain (loss) on disposal or revaluation of assets 310 (5,388)
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Note 5. Current assets

$'000 Mot 2023 2022
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets
Cash on hand and at bank 10,970 1,312
Short Term Depaosits - 8173
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets 10,970 9,485
(b) Trade and Other Receivables
Rates - General and Other 3,462
Accrued revenues 1
Debtors - general 1,741
GST recoupment 1317
Prepayments 401
Loans to community organisations 3.
Subtotal 6,955
Total Trade and Other Receivables - 6,955
(c) Inventories
Stores and Materials 244
Real estate developmenisg 1,309
Cemetery Plinths, Vaults and It 44
Total inventories 910 1,597
Note 6. Non-current assets
$ 000 2023 2022
(a) Trade and other receivables
Receivables
Council rates postponement scheme 47 59
Loans to community organisations - 334
Subtotal 47 393
Total receivables 47 393
Other financial assets (investments)
Mortgages over Property - Affordable Housing Scheme 615 615
Total other financial assets {(investments) 615 615
Total financial assets 662 1,008
continued on next page ... Page 21 of 56
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Note 6. Non-current assets (continued)
$ ‘000 Hotes 2023
(b) Equity accounted investments in council businesses

Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority 13 6,290

Total equity accounted investments in Council

businesses A 6,290

(c) Other non-current assets

Inventories
Real estate developments
Total inventories

Other

Caphtal work in progress

Intangible Assets - Water Licenses
Total other

Total other non-current assets

Real Estate Devel

(Valued at the lower

Residential iy 1,793
Total real estate for resale 1,793
Represented by:

Acquisition costs 4 1,266
Development costs - 527
Subtotal 1,793
Apportionment of real estate developments

Current assets 6840
Non-current assets 1,153

2,676
2,676

1,367
1,309
2876

1,309
1,367
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment

Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment

a8 o 300822 S % 3 300823
Revasaton
Faw Axart Avsut 5 Incrprrents S
Vaiue Accurmsmed Careyng Adaricns New Adasorme WOV o Equty (ARR) Accirmdsied Carryreg
300 Lowm At Fair Vaue MCowt  Opprecsation wrout | Upgrade Renewais (oo R At Fair Vil AtCowt  Degrecaton amount
Land - other 2 554 566 - -~ 554866 - 497 726,574 - - 726574
Land imorovaments 4 225418 - (87 5063 135,812 {6.958) 529 270,940 - (107,388) 163,575
Buildings and Other Structures 3 156,547 - (51,626) 104,821 {4.950) 7881 185,151 - {59,660) 125 491
nfrastrictore 3 1,414,756 - (500.240) 914 515 (16,248) 97 565 1,577,736 - (561,251) 1,016,485
Right-ot-use assets - 3.201 (1313} 1.888 420} - - 3.201 (1,733) 1468
Pant and Equipment - {3.241) - - 36,350 (24,578) 1774
Library bocks - (189) - - 2,098 (1,029) 1,067
Total Infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment 2,340 386 (32108) 297472 2760401 41647 (755614) 2045434
Comparatives 2,927,353 (29,748) 196,371 2,340,386 39083  (663931) 1,725408
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Valuation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment property
Valuation of assets

Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis after initial recognition:
Land

Land Improvements

Infrastructure

Buildings and Other Structures

Council does not subsequently measure any kabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, or any assets or kabilities at fair value
on a non-recurring basis,

a) Fair Value Hierarchy

AASSE 13 Fair Value Measurement requires the disclosure of fair vaive information’
value hierarchy. This hierarchy categorises fair value measurements into onait
level that a significant input can be charactetised into. The levels are o be

- e o 0w

2 “ ;"'_-- relevant level in the fair

Level 1 Level 2 o
(umm)lnmmmm e i 3 Weasurements based on

access at the measurement date, Cly O indirectiy. \ AN

Themrvaluoofummunnotmdod' ket is defe imdudngomommvam.ﬁonlodﬂqua.
These valuation techniques rmaxinsse, i ) : o obs: market data. If ali significant inputs required
to measure fair value are obsarvable. the a: 2Ifomormorotmnﬂmtnwumno(bmdm

Council . appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data Is available to

measure fair value. The avaitab of 8¢ ent and relevant data primarily depends upon the specific characteristics of the
asset being measured. The valuation te ques selected by Council are consistent with one or more of the following vaiuation
approaches:

- Market Approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or similar
assels.

- Income Approach converts estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single current (le. discounted) value.
- Cost Approach reflacts the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when pricing the
asset, including assumplions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, Council gives priority to those technigues that
maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of uncbservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market
data (such as publicly avaitable information on actual transactions) and refiect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would
generalty use when pricing the asset or liability are considered cbservable, whereas inputs for which market data is not available
and therefore are deveioped using the best information avaitable about such assumptlions are considered unobservable.

During 2017/18 Council initially undertock a review of the intemal overhead costs, such as project management, supervision
and design, that are directly related to the renewal of Council's Transport and Stormwaler assets. The purpose of the review
was to ensure that the appropriate level of direct internal overhead costs (expressed as a percentage) were being reflected in
the unit rates that are utilised to revalue these asset classes. These overhead percentages were independently reviewed by
Tonkin Consulting and continue to be incorporated into their review of Council’'s Assel Valuations,

c) Capitalisation Thresholds
continued on next page ... Page 24 of 56
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Capitalisation thresholds used by Council for a representative range of asseis are shown below. No capitalisation threshoid
is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.,

Office Fumiture and Equipment

Plant and Light Vehicles

Buildings - new contruction/extensions

Park and Playground Fumiture and Equipment
Road construction and reconstruction

Paving and Footpaths, Kerb and Gutter
Drains and Culverts

Reticutation Extensions

Sidelines and household connactions
Artworks

d) Estimated Useful Lives ‘
wammewmmdmewhmdwm lnes&mmuw

assets is shown below, although individual assets may have ad eslifiate net lhofgrumrorinwamwm
Plant, Fumiture and Equipment '
Office Equipment 3 to 10 years
Office Furniture { 3to 10 years
Vehicles and Road-making Equipment 2 to 20 years
Other Plant and Equipment i = 310 20 years
Building and Other
Building Components 10 to 120 years
Playground Equipment 10 to 25 years
Benches, Seals, etc 10 to 15 years
infrastructure
Roads - Seal 20 to 35 years
Roads - Base 60 1o 105 years
Roads - Sub-Base 180 to 315 years
Unsealed Roads 51to 10 years
Bridge Components 20 1o 100 years
Footpaths 8 to 80 years
Kerb, Gutter and Medians 50 1o 315 years
Drainage Pipes 80 fo 150 years
Culverts, Headwalls and Junction Boxes 80 to 100 years
Dams and Reservoirs 200 to 400 years
Bores 75 years
Reticulation Pipes - PVC 50 to 80 years
Pumps and Telemetry 10 to 50 years
Other Assets
Library Books 3to 7 years
Arntworks/Local History Indefinite
Street Trees 50 years
Right of Use Assets 3to 5 years
e) Table of Fair Values 2022/23
continued on next page ... Page 25 of 56
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000s $'000s $'000s $'000s
Land 4 728,574 - 726,57
Land Improvements 3 } 163,575 163,57
vildings and Other Structures . 4,315 121,176 1251:%
Infrastructure ] { 1016485 1016,
(Total 1 730889 1,301,238 2,032,125

f) Disclosed Fair Value Measurements

Asset Category :f'v“ Valuation Fair Value
1 ."::" Technique $'000s
land 2 Market Value 726,574
Valuations of assets in this category are undertaken using the State Valuer Site Val
Asset Category l:‘:r'\ldr Valuation Value
1 f Technique
lLand improvements 3
Valuations of assets in this category are on Vi of ing methods:
a. Independent valuations are p d by methadology that utilises observable Council specific
contract rates or industry ¢o f 3 {0 calculate a current replacement cost for each asset.
Assels valued via this met} and Carpark Pavement/Seals all situated on Council Reserves. in
2022/23 a 3 year average of these unit rate e ised.

b. Revalued using a 3 year averagei( the Lesl Govemment Pricing Index (LGPI) in both 2021/22 and 2022/23. Assets include
i Playgrogngds, Sports Courts/Facilifies, Reserve Fumiture, Landscaping and Other Structures

¢. Independent valuations provided by Tonkin Consulting in 2018/20 using a methodology that utilises observable Council
cost information as well as their knowisdge of the waler indusiry and references 1o various construction guides (such as
Rawlinsons Australian Construction Handbook) to derive an index for each asset component associated with Councils
Recycled Stormwater Business Unit, which includes assets such as Pipework, Pumps, Bores, Valves, Electrical and Computer
Equipment. In 2020/21, an independent valuation of the current replacement cost for these assets was undertaken using
an ASR Asset Price index provided by Tonkin Consulting, derived from references to various construction guides (such as
Rawtinsons Australian Construction Handbook). In 2022/23, an independent valuation of the current replacement cost for
these asaets was undertaken using a 3 year average of an ASR Asset Price Index provided by Tonkin Consulting, derived
from references to various construction guides (such as Rawlinsons Australian Construction Handbook).

d. Independent valuations initially provided by JLL in 2017/18 using a methodology that utilises observable rates and cost
information from their research across the Playground and Fitness Equipment industries, Assets valued via this method
included Playgrounds and Fitness Equipment. These assets have been revalued from 2018/19 to 2020/21 utilising the Local
Government Pricing Index (LGP1) and in both 2021/22 and 2022/23 utilising a 3 year average of the Local Government Pricing
Index (LGP1).
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Asset Category TorVawe | vaiuation | Fair Vaiue
"w' archy Technique $'000s
[Buiiding and Other Structures 2 Market Value 43
Eu‘ﬂd’-\qandomot Structures 3 Cost Approach) 121,176
otal 125,491

Valuation of assets in this category are undertaken via the following method:

a. Independent market valuations were provided by Public Private Property for the 2020/21, 2021/22 and 2022/23 Financial
Year using a methodolgy that utifises observable, comparable market sales data in the City of Salisbury area.

b. Independent valuations of the current replacement cost for buildings at a componeridey sundeﬂaloenbySptwu-
Professional Engineering Services and Public Private Property as at 1 July 2020 A jogy that utilises observable
rales and cost information from their extensive knowledge across Building infrastruciiite. Fo 21/22 and 2022/23 financial
years, an independent valuation of the current replacement cost for these assbls Wa: i ing a 3 year average of
Building Component Indexes provided by Tonkin Consulting, derived from, ref S Rawlinsons Australian
Construction Handbook. . .
Fair Value
Asset Category Hisrarchy Valuation
Level
infrastructure 3 16,485
Valuation of assets in this one ing methods:
a. Independent valuations Beovi i using a methodology that utikses observable Council specific
condract rates or industry gul ve & unit rate used fo calculate a current replacement cost for each assel.
Assets valued via this method F . Kerbing, Carpark Pavements/Seals and Drainage Pipes/Pits all situated on
or under Council Roads. In 2021 a 3 year average of these unit rates have been utilised,
b. Independent valuations initialty by SMEC in 2016/17 using a methodology that utilises observable rates and cost

information from their extensive knowledge of water retention related infrastructure. Assets valued via this method Include
Major Drainage Dams. in the financial years from 2017/18 to 2020/21 these assets were revalued using the Local Government
Pricing Index (LGPI) and subsequently in 2021/22 and 2022/23, a 3 year average of the LGPI has been ufilised.

¢. Independent valuations provided by Infrastructure Management Group and Counterpart Solutions as at 30 June 2022 utilising
a methodology that utikses their extensive knowledge across Road Infrastructure as well as a 3 year average of unit rates
derived from references to the Rawlinsons Australian Construction Handbook. Assets vailued under this method inciude Road
Seals/Pavements. In 2022/23 a 3 year average of these unit rates have been utilised,

d. Revalued using a 3 year average in 2021/22 and 2022/23 of the Local Government Pricing Index (LGP1). Assels valued via
this method include Bridges, Irrigation Equipment on Roads, Road Fumiture, Landscaping on Roads, Open Drainage Systems
and Minor Drainage Dams.,

The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Velue Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July 2013.
There has been no change in the valuation technique(s) used to calculate the fair values disclosed in the financial statements

from previous years,
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Highest and best use
Al of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use, uniess market or other
factors suggest a different use by market participants would maximise the value of the asset.

Land Under Roads

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible 10 atiribute a value sufficiently refiably to qualify for recognition; land under
roads has not been recognised in these reports, Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost,
but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

Land
Much of the fand under Councils care and control is Crown [and or has been declared as community land under the provision
of the Local Government Act 1999. Other types of restrictions on the land may also apply. Valuations of this land are based
mv\esmvm-eewmsmvm Mabhmbaaedwmuewunmmm ©

bmzolﬂngwwldmatobodivwedbthanoum

Infrastructure, Buildings and Land improvements s ;
As there is no known active market for the majority of infrastructure, building ar d i p " at owmdbycwndi.

the fair value of the asset determined in accordance with AASH’

mmmlmwmmmau oL
then calcutating the value of its remaining se
and unobservable inputs in the calculation of!

« Economic (Useful) Lives of assety *
- Residual Value of assets
« Prasarved Value of assets
- Pattern of consumption of an assets economic benefits

- Condition

- Obsolescence

« Impairment

- Industry construction pricing indexes 2.9. Rawlinson's Construction Handbook and Cost Guide

- Other construction pricing indexes &.g. Local Government Pricing Index which is an index developed by the Australan Bureau
of Statistics and is prepared quarterly by the South Australia Centre for Economic Studies and is based on price movements
in the goods and services purchased by Local Governments.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets have been accounted for in accordance with the requirements of AASE 138 Intangible Assets. Councit has
purchased from the market in arm’s length transactions, Water Licences that enable the harvesting and sale of stormwater, and
is of the opinion that these Water Licences meet the definition and recognition requirements of Intangible Assets, specfically
Intangible Assets with an indefinite useful life. Initial recognition of these Water Licences is at cost, and after initial recognition
they are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Testing for impairment, in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assels, is undertaken annually, or whanever there may
be an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The determination that these Water Licencas have an indefinite
useful life is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life

assessment.
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Note 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Street Trees

Council is of the opinion that street trees and tree screens are tangible assets that Council uses to support the provision of
environmental and recreational services to the community, and have an initial cost that can be reliably measured, that is the
cost of planting and establishment. It is therefore considered that costs relating to tree plantings for Street Tree and Tree
Screen renewal programs only meet the recognition criteria of property, piant and equipment and are recognised as an asset.

Plant, Furniture and Fittings
Assets are carried at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Library Books

Library books are accounted for under the replacement method. Library stock at 30 June 2023 is valued using nominal values
recommended by the Public Library Service (PLS). All new purchases are treated as replacement items and the expense is
classified as depreciation. This expense Is then adjusted by the movement in the calculated val g of the library stock.

Right of Use Assets
Valued as the initial measurement of the lease liability being the present value of
costs, pre-paid lease payments and any estimated cosis to dismantie,

ents and any initial direct
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Note 8. Liabilities

2023 2023 2022 2022
$ '000 Notas Current Non Current Current Non Current
(a) Trade and other

payables
Goods and Services 17.845 - 13,397
Payments received in advance 9,284 - 5822
Accrued expenses - employee
entitements
Accrued expenses - other -
Deposits, Retentions and Bonds
Total trade and other
payables -
{b) Borrowings
Loans 3,769
Lease liabilities 1,580
Total Borrowings 5,349
All interest bearing liabilities are secured o
the future revenues of the Council
(c) Provisions
Salisbury Memorial Park
Provision 110
Mortgage Loss Provision o 16
Employes entitiements (including oncosts - _BO65 1,773 7,904 1,781
Total provisions 8,065 1909 7,904 1,907
Movements in provisions
Salisbury
Memorial Park
Maintenance Mortgage Los:
2023 (current and non-current) :mmon Provblo:
$ '000 2023 2023
Opening balance 110 16
Add: additional amounts recognised 10 ~
Closing balance 120 16
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Note 9. Reserves

_as at 30/06/22 a8 at 30108723
Opening Increments Closing
$ ‘oo0 Balance (Decrements) Balance
(a) Asset revaluation reserve
Land - other 453,758 172,497 626,263
Land improvements 33,351 19,629 52,880
Buildings and Other Structures 20328 7.881 28,208
Infrastructure 803,332 97 565 900,897
Library books : 2338 — 2338
Total asset revaluation reserve 1,313,105 2897 472 1,610,577
Comparatives 1146734 1,313,105
as at 30/06/23
Closing
§ ‘000 Balance
(b) Other reserves
Development and Public infrastructure Reserve (400) 2458
- 1907
- 986
- 7.939
- 883
- 948
(32,075} 28,183
(1,183) 2,381
- 273
(2,194) 3,738
(35,852) 49,764
(26,513) 46,852
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Note 9. Reserves (continued)

Purposes of reserves

Assot rovaluation reserves
The asset revaluation reserve is used fo record increments and decrements arising from changes in fair value of non current
assets (less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).

Development and Public Infrastructure Reserve

The Development and Public Infrastructure Reserve contains developer contributions towards future footpaths, street signs
and streel frees specific to the development site. it aiso contains developer contributions towards future works associated with
drainage systems, water pipes and pumps, Council road network, trails and bridges necessary to facilitate the development
and external to the develepment site,

Open Space Reserve
For developer contributions received that are 1o be utilised towards the future acquisition of op

For the provision of future renewal and maintenance of car parking areas within theS: ry Town Centre, Ingle Farm Town
Centre and Mawson Lakes Town Centre. b ¥

Property Disposal Reserve
To retain the proceeds of any property sales, including surplus langd.
the Local Government Act 1999 and subject to compiance witha Lrequirements thereof,

from Council's real estate developments. These proceeds are 10be"Ulllised to rep@y Gurrent debt or reduce future borrowing
requirements. ) 3

Mauscleum Perpetual Care Fund Res
To provide maintenance for the Maus

Snlhbuvymbll'm :
To fund future deve!

Used for unspent budget funds@liibe end of fi year that are 10 be carried forward for uss in the following year.

Salisbury Water Business Unit R¢ L

Generated by the aliocation of surplis#s, and offset by deficits resulting from the operations of the Salisbury Water Business
Unit. Allocations from the Reserve can only be made following a resolution of Council and can only be utilised to fund either
business development, asset renewal, offset losses or to distribute dividends to Council.

Northern Futures Fund Reserve

Funds heid to be utilised 10 support local communities, particularly those in priority groups, 1o engage in ifelong leaming
leading to employment and provide accessible, quality services and resources relating to schools o work transition, workforce
development, employment programs, career transitioning and capacity building. A reference group including three industry
represeniatives, two education representatives and a representative from both the SA Government and City of Salsbury have
oversight of the fund and how monies will be disbursed,

Business Transformation Reserve

Generated by the allocation of identified expenditure savings and income gains as stated within the Business Transformation
Future Fund Policy and to be utilised to fund future costs associated with projects that align with the City of Salisbury’s three
success factors being Exceptional Community Experience, Quality Outcomes and Great Place to Work, without unnecessarily
burdening the community with the costs of these initiatives in the year of expenditure.
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Note 10. Assets subject to restrictions
$'000

The uses of the lollowing assets are restricied, wholly or partially, by legislation or other
externally imposed requirements. The assets are required to be utilised for the purposes
for which control was transferred to Coundil, or for which the revenues were originally
obtained.

Cash and Financial Assets

Open space contributions

Developer contributions

Unexpended Grants and Subsidy Funds
Total Cash and Financial Assets

Total assets subject to externally imposed restrictions

Open Space Contributions are received primarily to fund reserves/piayspaces and othefl

recreational areas within new subdivisions. Developer Contributions are reSived
primarily to fund infrastructure works in new subdivisions. These funds gt he!
Reserves (as disclosed in Note 9} until required and as such are regarded a5 e
Grant and Subsidy Funds received but not yet expended are

are disclosed in Note 2h.

1,807

1,519
2,970
4,661
9,150

9,150
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Note 11. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

$ '000 Notes 2023 2022
{a) Reconciliation of cash
Cash assets comprise highly bquid investments with short periods to maturity
subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of the reporting
period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the reiated
items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Total Cash and Equivalent Assets 5 10,970 9,485
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 10,970 9485
(b) Reconciliation of change in net assets to cash from operating
activities L

Net surplusi(deficit) 13,741
Non-cash items in income statements )
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment e 6 29,746
Equity movements in equity accounted investments (increase)i (19) (1,225)
Non-cash asset acquisitions {1,955) (2,865)
Grants for capital acquisitions treated as i (6,799) (2,895)
Net (gain)loss on disposals (310). 5388

44,041 41,890
Add (less): changes in net current assets S ’
Net (increase decrease in g DieS . W Lo (1,541) 1,688
Net {increase)decrease in i W o 18 (19)
Net increase/(decrease) in Y 6,686 3,940
Net increasa/(decrease) In 153 95
Net increase/{decrease) in other 10 10
Net cash provided by (or u 49,367 47,804
(c) Financing arrangements
Unrestricted access was avallable at balance date to the following lines of
credit:
Bank overdrafts 500 500
Corporate credit cards 500 500
LGFA cash advance debenture facility 47 467 50,317
The bank overdraft faciities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice,
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Note 12(a). Functions

Income, Expenses and Assets have been directly attributed to the following Functions / Activities.
Details of these Functions/Activities are provided in Note 12(b).

TOTAL ASSETS HELD
GRANTS INCLUDED (CURRENT AND
INCOME EXPENSES IN INCOME NON-CURRENT)
$ ‘000 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Functions/Activities
Heaith m 159 315 an N 52 7 396 6,018
Social Security and Weifare 4,059 3544 9428 ¥ 3120 2813 5.820 16,331
Housing and Community Services 32713 3,845 38,324 253 668 614,014 52291
Recreation and Culture 1,366 1,188 44 040 803 729 715,518 550,602
Transport and Communication 4.747 5,162 4,739 5157 664777 504 300
Economic Affairs 74 106 - 10 128 9
Other, Not Attributed and Admin 126,081 117,798 e K 11481 9,223 104,048 91,170
Public Order and Safety R 1 & ) B _{e83) (e84 W W3 2637 484
Total Functions/Activities 143,932 11,935 12,166 20,258 18650 2,107,337 1,781,925
Revenues and expenses sxclude net gain (loss) on disposal or d antites, s d specifically for new or upgraded asests and physical rescurces recelved fres
of charge.
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Note 12(b). Components of functions

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

Public Order and Safety
Supervision of various laws, fire prevention, crime prevention and repair, road safely and dog control.

Health
Health Act administration, iImmunisation services and pest and pest plant control,

Soclal Security and Welfare
Ogperation of a senior leisure centre, aged care services, youth services and community information.

Housing and Community Services
Town planning, community development planning, road sweeping, roadside rubbish coliection, domestic refuse collection,
operating of waste transfer station, stormwater drainage, operation of the St Kilda Mangrove traili Street signs, landscape
design, tree management and operation of cemetery. :

Maintenance and operation of libraries, recreation centres, swimming pool, commiin pnires, piitks, gardens and
reserves, clubrooms, playgrounds, sports grounds and halls.

Transport and Communication
Construction and maintenance of roads, footpaths, bridges,

Economic Affairs
Building Act administration, economchmm Ourisn

85s and costs which relate to muitiple functions
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 13. Financial instruments

Recognised financial instruments
Bank, deposits at call, short term deposits

Accounting Policy:
Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, interest is recognised when eamed.

Terms and Conditions:
Deposits are retuming fixed interes! rates between 4.10% and 4.30% (2022: 1.05% and 2.05%). Shoet tarm deposits have an
average maturity of 30 days and an average interest rate of 4. 30% (2022: 30 days and 1.92%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.

Receivables - Rates and Assoclated Charges

assessed annually) when collection in full is no longer probabile.
Terms and Conditions: oo s
Sowndowmowbjodhnd.munwwmmdlo%'( ). ol pot materially exposed to any indvidual

Carrying Amount:

Receivables - Fees an

Accounting Policy:
Carried at nominal values le
assessed annually) when

{ brdowmndubu. An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-

Torms and Conditions: o
Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Council is not materially exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk exposure is
concentrated within the Council's boundaries.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).
Receivables - other levels of government

Accounting Policy:
Carried at nominal vaiue.

Terms and Conditions:
Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective programs following advice
of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts are due by Depariments and Agencies of State and Federal Governments.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value.
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Note 13. Financial instruments (continued)

Liabllities - creditors and accruals

Accounting Policy:
Liabilitles are recognised for amounts o be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Council.

Terms and Conditions:
Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms,

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Liabilities - interest bearing borrowings

Terms and Conditions:
Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable biannually, i
6.80% (2022: 4.00% and 6.80%). .
Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.
Liabilities - leases

Accounting Policy:
Accounted for in accord

continued on next page ... Page 38 of 58
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Note 13. Financial instruments (continued)

Total
Due Due > 1 year Due Contractual Carrying
$ '000 <1year andsS5years > 5§ years Cash Flows Values
Financial assets and
liabilities
2023
Financial assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,970 - 10,870
Receivables 5,738 47 5,785
Other financial assets - - 615
Total financial assets 16,708 47 17,370
Financial liabilities
Payables 19,070 - 18,070
Current borrowings 1,410 - 1,410
Non-current borrowings 2,254 2359
Lease liabilities 1556
Total financial liabilities 24 395
Total financial assets
and liabllities 41,765 41,765
2022
Financial assets
Cash and Cash Equivalentsd’ 9,485 9,485
Receivables 5630 5630
Other financial assets 615 615
Total financial assets 15,730 15,730
Financial liabilities R
Payables o421 - - 14,211 14,244
Current borrowings 1321 - -~ 1.321 1,321
Non-current borrowings - 3,624 145 3,769 3,769
Lease liabdities 406 1,580 - 1,986 1,986
Total financial liabilities 15,938 5204 145 21,287 21,320
Total financial assets
and liabilities 30,660 5,597 760 37,017 37,050
The following interest rates were applicable to Council's borrowings at balance date;
. 2023 . _ 2022 . A
Weighted Avg Carrying  Weighted Avg Carrying
$'000 Interest Rate Value Interest Rate Value
Overdraft 10.47% - 8.22% -
Fixed interest rates 510% 3,715 6.08% 5,000
3,715 5,090
Net fair value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised market for the
financial assets of the Council,
continued on next page ... Page 39 of 56
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Note 13. Financial instruments (continued)

Risk exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum credit
risk on financial assets of the Councd is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts. Al Council investments
are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government. Except as detailed in
Notes 5 and 6 in relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the Counci's boundaries, and
there is no material exposure to any individual debtor,

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All of Council’s
financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence nelther market risk nor

currency risk apply.

mhmmmwmmmmmﬁmmmﬂmwd
the model Treasury Management Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabiliies have a range of ma
has available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can P

fities. In accordance with
ity dates, Council also

mmmmmmnmmmwmmma na arest rates. Council has a

2022
the financial statements as |
Buiidings P 2493 9,769
Infrastructure 24,374 18,728
Plant and Equipment 1,763 1,343
28,630 29,840
These expenditures are payabie:
Not later than one year 28630 29840
28,630 29,840
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Note 15. Financial indicators

$ 000 2023 2023 2022

Financial Indicators overview

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance
with Information paper 9 - Local Government Financial
Indicators prepared as part of the LGA Financial Sustainabliity
Program for the Local Government Association of South
Australia.

1. Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating surplus 11,954
Total operating income 144,272

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of
total operating revenue.

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net financial kabilities
Total operating income

14.2%

Net Financial Liabiities are defined as total [i
financial assets {exciuding equity accountgail
Council businesses). These are expressed
lotal operating revenue.

Adjusted Operating Surplus Rat
Operating surplus
Total operating income

8,158
140,476

5.8% B8.4%

Adjustments to Ratios ko)

In recent years the Federal Government has made advance
payments pricr 1o 30 June from fulure year allocations of
financial assistance and supplementary local roads grants, as
explained in Note 1. The Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
adjusts for the resulting distortion In the disclosed aperating
result for each year.

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

Asset renewals 20,609

Infrastructure and Asset Management Plan required 20,012 103.0% 86.6%
expenditure

Asset renewals expenditure is defined as capital expenditiure on
the renewal and replacement of existing assels relative to the
optimal level planned, and exciudes new capital expenditure on
the acquisition of additional assets.

continued on next page ...

2021

7.8%

11.3%

7.5%

76.0%
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Note 15. Financial indicators (continued)

Financial indicators - graphs
1. Operating Surplus Ratio
125

Commentary on 2022/23 resuit
Purpose of operating | —
10 surplus ratio 9D
a3 DR ATEAT S ot
2 8 1
i The target for the operating suplus ratio as per the
2022723 Long Yerm Firancial Plan and Anmusal
Business Plan (LTFP & ABP) wars 0. 5% to 5.0% with
! the sctual results sitting sbove the upper Smil. This is
25 i : . program
u 2031

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
L

2is ! ' L ! - -
( D | i .;““é.
3 5 . ! A=l :~\V-nk} Oty
. 4 =

15

The target for the ret financial kablities rafio as per

the 202223 LTFP & ABP waa <T0%, with the actual

result remaining lower than target. Thia is the resut

of kow leveis of debt and the impacts of the advanced
of he F Grant and

Untied Local Roads Graint being received in ate June
2023, Funther corributing & e timing of the

dhiu-yoln-cnpnlpnquM\mitugnﬂcuicany

forward it the 2023724 Snancial year

Ratio
=

200 2023 2023

Commentary on 2022/23 result
operating suplus rafio | | 207023 ralio 58%

I
58 ’
| The target for the operating surplus ratio as per the
| Thiss indicator is 10 determine the 2022/23 LTFP & ABP was 0.5% 10 5 0% with the
| he opar auuinndbu’undkvm‘hnnmCMuuua.d
| {acdpssted for brring diffe in . Geant} sitling above the
| the Financisl Assistance Grant) qunrunlYh--punlﬁyﬂnv-ulcldﬂqmi\m-
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g vais g lower than

200 2002 a0
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for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 15. Financial indicators (continued)

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
! 15

|| Commentary on 2022/23 result
1030 Purpose of asset :
196 renawal funding ratio
760 | !
g 1 ¢
i
This indicator ms 0 determem if | | The target for the asset renewal funding ratio s por
anssty are benyg renowed snd the 202223 LTFP & ABP was 100%, wah the actual
s reptaced in an opbma way FEsults fust above this target
[
2023
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Note 16. Uniform presentation of finances

$ '000 2023 2022

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment activities

of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework basis.

Al Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term

financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common ‘core’ of financial

information, which enables meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances.

Income

Rates 106,593

Statutory charges 3,656

User charges 5,183

Grants, subsidies and contributions - operating 18,650

Investment incoma m

Reimbursements 421

Other income 1,034

Net gain - equity accounted council businesses 1,225

Total Income 136,883

Expenses

Employee costs 40,404 38,303

Materials, contracts and other expenses 69,093 54 974

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 32,106 29,746

Finance costs - = 394 461

Net loss - equity acce ;-

Total Expenses 132,318 123,514

Operating surplus / (d 11,954 13,369

Adjusted Operating s 11,954 13,369

Net outiays on existing assets !

Capital expenditure on renewal and replacement of existing assets {21,043) (18,297)

Add back depreciation, amortisation and impairment 32,108 29,746

Add back proceads from sale of replaced assets 434 547
1487 11,996

Net outlays on new and upgraded assels

Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets (including Investment Property and

Real Estate Developments) (39,921) {31,372)

Add back amounts received specifically for new and upgraded assets 6,798 2,805

Add back proceeds from sale of surplus assets (including investment property, real

estale developments and non-current assets held for resale) 5408 sz

(27,716) (28,155)
Annual net impact to financing activities (surplus/(deficit)) (4,265) {(2,790)
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Note 17. Leases

(i) Council as a lessee

Terms and conditions of leases

Council leases information technology equipment and a parcel of land utilised as part of its recycled water operations. The
repayments for the information technology assets are fixed and the land is subject to yearly increases in-line with contractual
raequirements. information technology leases are either 3 or 5 year terms, and the land has a contractual agreement in place

until 2048, with another right of renewal.

Set out below are the carmrying amounts of right-of-use asseats recognised within Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment

and the movements during the period:

(a) Right of use assets

$ ‘000 Total

2023

Opening balance 1,888

Additions to right-of-use assets P -

Adjustments to right-of-use assets due to re-measurement of lofRs

liability . -

Depreciation charge (420)

Balance at 30 June 1,468

2022

Opening batance 22 2,255

Additions to right-of-use as: 53

Adjustments to right-of-use

liability - - -

Depreciation charge (379) #) (420)

Balance at 30 June 810 1,078 1.888

continued on next page ... Page 45 of 56
Page 110 City of Salisbury

Audit and Risk Committee Agenda - 10 October 2023



7.12

City of Salisbury Annual Financial Statements 2023

City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 17. Leases (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease kabiitios (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the

movements during the period:
$'000 2023

Balance at 1 July 1.985
Additions .
Accretion of interest
Payments

Other

Balance at 30 June

Classified as:
Current
Non-current

The maturity analysis of lease labilities is included in Note 13,

TheGmphadtotaicashoumowsforbmsofsﬂ

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets « 420
Interest expense on lease liabikties ' 55
Expense refating to short ternyfes 134
Total amount recognised | 609

(i) Council as a lessor A b s
Leases Providing Revenue to Council

420

23
621

Councit owns various buildings, piant and other faciiities that are available for hire or lease {on a non-cancellable basis wherever
practicable) in accordance with the published revenue policy. Rentals received from such leases are disclosed as rent and

hire of non-investment property in Note 2,

Investment pi

roperty
Rentals received, and outgoings reimbursed, in refation to investment Property are also disclosed in Note 2. These lease
agreements, all of which are classified as operating leases, are made on a non-cancefiable basis wherever practicable,

$ ‘000 2023 2022

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable

operating leases as at 30 June, are as follows:

Not later than one year 1,011 1,011

Later than one year and nol later than 5 years 2063 2,219

Later than 5 years B 1611 2,133
4,685 5,363
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Note 18. Superannuation

TheComdlnmkampbyevsupemwwoneonmmammpeddmmwbwa(fmwﬂymcalsmmm
Superannuation Scheme and Statewide Super). There are two types of membership, each of which is funded
mmlmmmdmwmmmmmeRbomﬁummﬂ
November 2009 have the option to contribute 1o the Accumulation section and/or Safarylink. Al other empiloyees (including
casuals) have all contributions allocated to the Accumulation section.

Accumulation only members

Accumuiation only members receive both employer and employes contributions on a progressive basis, Employer confributions
are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time eamings in accordance with superannuation guarantee legistation (10.50% in
2022/23: 10.00% in 2021/22). No further liability accrues to the Council as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees
are represented by thelr share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink {Defined Benefit Fund) members

Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determ
contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Coungiiimy

to Salarylink as determined by the Fund's Trustee based on advice from the app ¥ The rate is currently 6,3%

(6.3% in 2020¢21) of “superannuation” salary.

in addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary time e 5 . 5 10 their
mmmemmmmmmmwm = Fung. As such, assets
accumulate in the Satarylink section of the Fund to meet the man ofits, a8 dofined it Deed, as they
accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. ! ; gction'§ @ssets and liabilitles are pooled and
are not aliocated by each employer, and e E amployer within the local government sector
and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuling 1S unabie to & 25, assets and costs between employers,

As provided by AASB 119.34(a), Council doss ot use efined beniof accounting for these contributions.
The most recent actuarial i v '

Walson as at 30 June 202 stoe has dete g mmhm-\gmmmmadequalafonho
expected Salarylink labilitie Howove d economic circumstances may require changes to Council's

legislation. All such schemes are of th muw‘MMewmmmwwmmmm
represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the Council,
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for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 18. Interests in other entities

All joint ventures and assoclates are required to prepare Annual Financlal Statements that comply with the SA
Local Government Model Financial Statements.

Council's Share of Net Income  Council's Share of Net Assets

$ ‘000 2023 2022 2023 2022
Joint Ventures - in profit 340 1,225 6,260 6,049
Joint Ventures - in loss {321) - - -
Council's share of net income

Joint ventures A8 1z 6,290 6,048
Total Council's share of net income 19 1,225 6,290 6,049

{(a)i) Joint ventures, associates and joint operations

(a) Carrying amounts
$ ‘000 2022
Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority

6290 6,049
Total Carrying Amounts - Joint Ventures a
Associates P 6,290 6,049
Northern Adelaide Waste
Manages the waste collec! i Citles of Salisbury and Playford and the Town of Gawler.
Whilst the City of Salisbury B JBire of Sty in NAWMA for the 2023 financial year, Council s of the opinion

that it does not have control oy
vating power at 33.33% and M/
ability for Council fo control NAYWMI

tions. The rationale being that ail three Constituent Counclis hold equal
on and CEO are independent from the constituent Councils. Therefore the

ations is limited to Council's voting power at 33.33%, not its share of equity at
Mmmungmmmwmhmuoqulwhmmmm

57.11%. Accordingly Council has o
2023 financial year,
(b) Relevant interests
Interost in Ownership Proportion of
Operating Result Share of Equity Voting Power
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority 57.11% 5407% S57.11% 5407% 3333% 33.33%
continued on next page ... Page 48 of 56
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Note 19. Interests in other entities (continued)

{c) Movement in investment in joint venture or associate

Northern Adelaide Waste
Management Authority
$ '000 2023 2022
Opening Balance 4824
Share in Operating Result 1,225
Share in Other Comprehensive Income .
Adjusiments to Equity -
Council's equity share in the joint venture or associate 6,049
(d) Summarised financial information of the equity accounted business
Statement of Financial Position
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,802
Other Current Assets 5163
Non-Current Assels 20679
Total assets 33,772 35674
Current Trade and Other Payables 5876 7117
Current Financial Liatalities 2,503 2,243
Current Provisions 516 327
Non-Current Financial Liabilities _ 6,479 8,310
Non-Current Provisions 7,383 6,489
Total liabilities 22,757 24,486
Neot Assets 11,015 11,188
Statement of Comp
Other Income 45277 48,1565
Management Fees - -
Interest income 556 282
Total income _A5833 48417
Employee Costs 4767 4,147
Materiais, Contracts and Other Expenses 37.482 38,174
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 3.566 3,315
Finance Costs 576 467
Total expenses 46,391 46,103
Operating Result (558) 2,314
continued on next page ... Page 49 of 56
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Note 19. Interests in other entities (continued)

{e) Share of joint operations expenditure commitments
Expenditure committed for (excluding inventories) at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as

liabilities:

$ '000 2023 2022
(1) Capital expenditures payable

Not later than one year 16,730 17,128
Later that one year and not later than 5 years ) 6,522 19,032

The Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority manages multiple extemal contra I externa
collection, processing and disposal of waste on behalf on its Constituent Councits and custol The commitments disclosed
above reflect a consolidation of multiple contracts entered into with extemal suppliers, in

required to be renewed with external suppliers in accordance with adopted o0

Authority. =

(1) Lease Payments Commitments Payable

Not later than one year 1,100
Later that one year and not later than 5 years 3,005
4,105
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Note 20. Contingencies and Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The following assets and liabllities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but knowledge is
considered rejevant 10 the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce
resoUrces.

1. Land under roads

As reported in the Financial Statements, Council is of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficlently reliably for
these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been recognised in the reports, Land acquired
for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair vaiue at repotting date, effectively writing
off the expenditure.

2. Potential insurance losses

Council is a multi-purpose organisation providing a large range of buiiding, parks infrastructure, ds and other faciities
amlb!oto!tnpubltc.Nanlemo,nuhkddemwmmmw

Council insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance pOliGkas; ¢
“insurance excesses”, the amount of which varies according to the class of inslins

Council has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at repe ’
(including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other poléntis i

reporting date.

3. Legal matters

Council is the planning consent authority fafits pment A 1993 (as amended). Pursuant fo that Act,
cerlain persons aggneved by a planning ded ppeal, It is normal practice that parties bear their own

s against planning decisions made prior to reporting

legal costs. At the date of these
4 het costs cannot be known until the appeals are determined.

date. All known costs have been fecog

4. Cemetery

Council operates a Cametery Fae bury Memorial Park. A Contingent Liability exists for the ongoing maintenance
of this Cemetery. This liability rema sriod of 100 years after the expiry of the lease on the last burial of the site. In
addition, Council is party (o a leasing 8 ament for the management and operations of the Mausoleum situated at Salisbury
Memorial Park. As part of this lease the lessee is required to contribute to the Perpetual Care Fund which was established to
fund the long term maintenance of the Mausoleum upon expiry of the lease.

Note 21. Events after the Statement of Financial Position Date
Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2023, up to and including the date when the financial statements are
"authorised for issue® have been taken into account in prepanng these statements.

Councll has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors’ Report as the appropriate "authorised for Issue” date relating to these
General Purpose Financial Statements,

Council is unaware of any material or significant 'non adjusting events' that should be disclosed.
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Note 22. Related party transactions

Key management personnel

Transactions with key management personnel

The Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Council include the Mayor, Councillors, CEQ, General Managers and cerlain
prascribed officers under section 112 of the Local Governiment Act 1999, as well as other personnel that satisty the criteria
of KMP as contained within AASE 124 Related Party Transactions. In some circumstances members of the KMP have left

Councit during the financial year, however thelr compensation has still been included. In all, 53 persons were paid the following
total compensation:

$'000 2023 2022
The compensation paid to key management personnel comprises:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-empioyment benefits
Long-term benefits

Total

Amounts paid as direct reimbursement of expenses incurred opbe
not been included above. )

5,537
485
750

6,772

Receipts from key management p

Th«ohavcbsonnooonrmalamlacm .
capacity as ratepayers or resident

during the financial year, other than amounts paid in their
s, elc).

In regards to Council's Regional being NAWMA, further information relfating to their specific activities and carrying
amounts are disclosed in Note 18- J8n equity owner, along with other member Councils, of NAWMA. Member Councils
have equal representation on the f NAWMA and accordingly have influence over both the financial and operational
decisions of the Subsidiary. However, no cne Member Council individually has control over these decisions. The following
material transactions occurred with Counci's Regional Subsidiary, during the financial year:

Payments Qutstanding

Naorthern Adelaide Waste Management Authority (NAWMA) 16,333 1,203
Total 16,333 1,293

Budgeted future year expenditure at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority 14,604
Total 1-},694

The budgeted expenditures are payable no later than one year from the reporting date
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Independent Auditor's Report - Financial Statements
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Independent Auditor's Report - Internal Controls
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Certification of Auditor Independence

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of City of Salisbury for the year ended
30 June 2023, the Council's Auditor, BDO Australia has maintained its independence in accordance with the requirements of
the Loca! Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act,

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2071,

John Harry
Chief Executive Officer

Date: 11 October 2023
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Statement by Auditor

1 confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of City of Salisbury for the year ended 30 June 2022, | have maintained
my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section
290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act
1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local Govemment (Financial
Management] Regulations 2011.

Auditor's Name
Audit Firm Name

Date: dd MMMM yyyy
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ITEM7.1.3

ITEM 7.1.3
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

DATE 10 October 2023

HEADING Treasury Policy Review

AUTHORS Melissa Hamilton, Team Leader Accounting Services, Business
Excellence
Kate George, Manager Financial Services, Business Excellence

CITY PLAN LINKS 4.2 We deliver quality outcomes that meet the needs of our
community

SUMMARY This report presents the Treasury Policy to the Audit and Risk
Committee  prior to  presentation to  Council  for
consideration and adoption.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1.  Adopts the amended Treasury Policy, as set out in Attachment 1 to this report

(Audi

t and Risk Committee, 10 October 2023, ltem 7.1.3) reflecting the change in

format and minor editing changes, as considered appropriate by the Audit and Risk
Committee.

ATTACHMENTS

This docum

ent should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:

1.  Treasury Policy

1. BACKGROUND

11

1.2

1.3

The Local Government Act, 1999, sets out Council’s powers in relation to
investments and borrowings. The policy set out in Attachment 1 details Council’s
position in relation to Treasury Management and is aligned to the requirements of
the legislation.

The attached Treasury Policy is effectively Council’s mandate to the
administration as it provides the direction and also limitations to undertake
investment activities, to be exercised under appropriate delegations.

Council resolved in February 2020 when considering the Second Quarter Budget
Review for 2019/2020 (Budget and Finance Item 6.5.1):

That a further report be provided that reviews the Treasury Policy,
Part E — Policy Statement, paragraph 1-2, for non-discretionary bids and
sundry projects. (Resolution 0426/2020 extract)

The Treasury Policy was updated in October 2020 to strengthen the policy in this
regard.
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1.4

The Policy was further updated in July 2022 to reflect that the borrowing mix is
very difficult to achieve with low levels of debt, and would only be required when
the Net Financial Liabilities Ratio is above 10%.

2. CONSULTATION/COMMUNICATION

2.1 N/A
3. REPORT

3.1 The Treasury Policy has been reviewed having regard to the legislative
requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

3.2 Further the policy has also been reviewed against the recommendations contained
within the LGA ‘Financial Sustainability’ Information Paper No. 15: Treasury
Management (revised February 2015) which provides guidance to councils in
determining Treasury Management guidelines.

3.3 Given the changes to the policy in recent years, there are no significant changes

proposed at this time, with minor edits shown in the attached document as track
changes and relate to:

3.3.1  Change in reference to budget in paragraph 2.1 of the attached to include
annual business plan.

3.3.2 Removal in paragraph 5.1.1 of reference to interest cover ratio as this
ratio is not utilised by Council for many years.

3.3.3 Removal of the Council decision in 2011 that established the initial
treasury policy.

4. CONCLUSION/PROPOSAL

41

4.2

The Treasury Policy has been reviewed with regards to the

Legislative provisions of the Local Government Act 1999, the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and the guidance contained within
LGA ‘Financial Sustainability’ Information Paper No. 15: Treasury Management.

The Treasury Policy as set out in Attachment 1 is provided to the Audit and Risk
Committee for review and the provision of feedback prior to the policy being
presented to Council for consideration.
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7.1.3 Treasury Policy

A
~~—

cirr 00

Salisbury

City of Salisbury Values: Respectful, Accountable, Collaborative, Helpful

TITLE: Treasury Policy
Adopted by: Council
Responsible Division: Financial Services
First Issued/Adopted: 23 March 2010
Last Reviewed: 19 October 2020
Next Review Date: November 2027

1. Purpose

1.1 This Treasury Management Policy establishes a decision framework to
ensure that:

« Funds are available as required to support approved outlays;

e Interest rate and other risks (e.g. liquidity and investment credit
risks) are acknowledged and responsibly managed;

» The net interest costs associated with borrowing and investing are
reasonably likely to be minimised on average over the longer term;

o Further clarifies the treatment of surplus funds, identified through
the Budget Review process.

2.  Scope

21 This policy provides clear direction to management, staff and Council in
relation to the treasury function. It underpins Council’s decision-making
regarding the financing of its operations as documented in its annual budget
business plan, budget and long-term financial plan and associated projected
and actual cash flows receipts and outlays.
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22 Council is committed to adopting and maintaining a long-term financial plan
and operating in a financially sustainable manner.

23 Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999, requires Council to act in a way
that is effective, efficient and accountable. This is especially of importance
when managing monies acquired by Council in order to provide benefit to
the community.

3. Legislative Requirements and Corporate Policy Context
Borrowings

ER | Local Government Act 1999 Sections 44, 122 and 134

3.2 Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
Investments

33 Local Government Act 1999 Sections 47, 139 and 140

5. Policy Statements

5.1__Treasury Management Strategy
511  Council’s operating and capital expenditure decisions are made on the basis
of:

o Identified community need and benefit relative to other expenditure
options;

o Cost effectiveness of the proposed means of service delivery;

o The affordability of proposals having regard to Council’s long-term
financial sustainability (including consideration of the cost of capital
and the impact of the proposal on Council’s Net Financial Liabilities
bbb bbb )

512  Council manages its finances holistically in accordance with its overall
financial sustainability strategies and targets. This means Council will:

e Maintain target ranges for its Net Financial Liabilities ratio;

« Generally, only borrow funds when it needs cash and not specifically
for particular projects;

o Apply any funds that are not immediately required to meet approved
expenditure (including funds that are required to be expended for
specific purposes but are not required to be kept in separate bank
accounts) to reduce its level of borrowings or to defer and/or reduce
the level of new borrowings that would otherwise be required.
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Budget Review Process / Funding Requests arising throughout the financial year

513  Apply surplus contained within the Sundry Projects Fund, following
adjustments for variations to existing estimates, to a reduction in
borrowings.

514  To ensure ongoing financial sustainability and appropriate deliberation of
arising matters, it is imperative that wherever possible any new
bids/projects arising through the year are to be referred to the budget
process for the subsequent year as this enables Council to consider the
merits of these proposals with all other bids/projects,

515  To be considered for funding during the year the project must be urgent or
advantageous to Council, and where possible Council should consider
options for cancelling or deferring existing projects to enable funds to be
made available. It should be considered a last resort to add to the program
and increase borrowings as this does not enable Council to consider the
merits of the specific project in light of all other proposed projects.

5.1.6  From time to time a matter may be referred to the next quarterly budget
review as a ‘Non-discretionary Budget Review Bid'. This mechanism is only
to be used when funds must be expended without delay, and consequently
should be regarded as an extraordinary situation or advantageous to
Council.

52 Interest Rate Risk Exposures

521  Council has set range limits for both fixed and variable interest rate
borrowings in order to minimise net interest costs on average over the
longer term and at the same time manage interest rate movement risks
within acceptable limits.

522  These limits defined below are to apply when Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
exceed 10%. At times of NFL Ratio below 10% where possible limits defined
before will be maintained.

523  Fixed Interest Rate Borrowings

o To ensure an adequate mix of interest rate exposures, Council will
structure its portfolio of borrowings to maintain on average in any
year, not less than 20% of its facilities in the form of fixed interest
rate borrowings.

o In order to spread its exposure to interest rate movements, Council
will aim to have a variety of maturity dates on its fixed interest rate
borrowings over the available maturity spectrum.
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5.2.4  Variable Interest Rate Borrowings

o Council will structure its portfolio of borrowings to maintain not less
than 20% of its average total borrowings in any year in the form of
variable interest rate borrowings.

e Council will utilise long-term variable interest rate borrowings
facilities, such as the LGFA's Cash Advance Debenture, that require
interest payments only and that enables any amount of principal to
be repaid or redrawn at call. The redraw facility will provide Council
with access to liquidity when needed.

53 Investments

53.1  Council funds that are not immediately required for operational needs and
cannot be applied to either reduce existing borrowings or avoid the raising
of new borrowings will be invested. The balance of funds held in any
operating bank account that does not provide investment returns at least
consistent with ‘at call’ market rates shall be kept at a level that is no
greater than is required to meet immediate working capital requirements.

532 Council funds available for investment will be lodged "at call’ or, having
regard to differences in interest rates for fixed term investments of varying
maturity dates, may be invested for a fixed term. In the case of fixed term
investments, the term should not exceed a point in time where the funds
otherwise could be applied to cost-effectively either defer the need to raise
a new borrowing or reduce the level of Council’s variable interest rate
borrowing facility.

5.3.3 When investing funds, Council will select the investment type which delivers
the best value, having regard to investment returns, transaction costs, and
other relevant and objectively quantifiable factors.

5.3.4 Council management may from time to time invest surplus funds in:

Deposits with the Local Government Finance Authority; and/or
Bank interest bearing deposits

Bank accepted/endorsed bank bills

State/Commonwealth Government Bonds

5.3.5 Any other investment requires the specific approval of Council.
54 Reporting
5.4.1 During the year Council will receive a report detailing total fixed borrowings
and variable borrowings at the end of the preceding month, also average
variable facility drawdown year to date, details of all investments held, their
term and interest rate. Timing of these reports will be November, February

and May, unless there is an opportunity to report earlier, with the end of
year reported as soon as practicable as part of our end of year reporting
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5.4.2 Atleast once a year Council shall receive a specific report regarding treasury

6.  Approval and History

Version

1

7. Availability

Approval Date

23 March 2010

27 April 20M

23 September 2013
26 April 2016

27 November 2017

25 November 2019

26 October 2020

25 July 2022

Approval By

Council
Council
Council

Council

Council

Council

Council

Council

management performance relative to this Policy. The report shall highlight:

e For each of Council’s borrowings and investments - the quantum of
funds, its interest rate and maturity date, and changes in the
quantum since the previous report; and,

The proportion of fixed interest rate and variable interest rate
borrowings at the end date of the reporting period along with key
reasons for significant variances compared with the targets specified
in this policy.

Change

Sundry projects
fund policy was
incorporated into
the Treasury Policy
and removed from
being a stand alone
policy

No material
Changes

Reduction in the
floor of each
borrowing type
from 30% to 20%

Policy was
strengthened with
regards to funding
projects through
budget reviews

Borrowing mix
requirements
applies only when
NFL Ratio is above
10%
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7.1.3 Treasury Policy

8.1 The Policy is available to be downloaded, free of charge, from Council’s
website www.salisbury.sa.gov.au

8.2 The Policy will be available for inspection without charge at the Civic Centre
during ordinary business hours and a copy may be purchased at a fee as set
annually by Council.

City of Salisbury Community Hub
34 Church Street, Salisbury SA 5108
Telephone: 84068222

Email: city@salisbury.sa.gov.au

8. Review

This Policy will be reviewed within 12 months of a Council election and thereafter
as necessary; or If deemed necessary by Council.

Further Information
For further information on this Policy please contact:

Responsible Officer: Team Leader Accounting Services

Address: 34 Church Street, Salisbury SA 5108
Telephone: 8406 8222
Email: ity@salisbury.sa.gov.a
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